C Y Foundation Group Limited

-

]

=
=

= X5 8B 8 R 2 A

|

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RBERESZMARIZ2EBER 2 7)
Stock code B 3 X 8% : 1182

F 3K

Annual Report
2011/12



FEERERERAT —E—-—Z-—F5ERs ]

CORPORATE INFORMATION 2
ARER

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT 4
R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 6
EREHRRA

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE 8
EERE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 10
EEEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 16
CEERRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 22
BB RS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 24
HAREKER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 25
SAMBRAE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 26
GARERBE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 27

= A iz E=
%ﬂ'\éﬁi/ﬁi%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 29
Re MBS R

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 111
hFEMGEHE

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY INTERESTS 112

YESE el



2 C Y Foundation Group Limited Annual Report 2011/12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive:

SNEAH Kar Loon (Chairman)
SIK Siu Kwan

Non-executive:

NG Kwok Lun

Independent Non-executive:
LAl Hock Meng

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan

YONG Peng Tak
IO Rudy Cheok Kei

AUDIT COMMITTEE
LAl Hock Meng (Chairman)

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan
IO Rudy Cheok Kei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
IO Rudy Cheok Kei (Chairman)

NG Kwok Lun
YONG Peng Tak

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
IO Rudy Cheok Kei (Chairman)

NG Kwok Lun
YONG Peng Tak

COMPANY SECRETARY

SIK Siu Kwan

AUDITOR

ANDA CPA Limited

EEg
YITES :

BEfm(E/E)
Bk

FHITES

BYFHTES

¥R

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan
5E

PhEE

FNEER
2R (FE)
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan
phea B

FHESR

hEE (L)

RElfm

5P E

REEER
hEE(E/E)

REMH

ARE

Bk

BT

ZEGHMEBAERAT



PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Unit 3503B-5, 35/F
148 Electric Road
North Point

Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 3576 3309
Facsimile :(852) 3576 3963
Website : www.cyfoundation.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1182

—2-—z-—EFERE 3

PEEEEERRAT

FEERRIT

TR LBESRITARDA
BAERITAERAR

A EE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

ITEMER

BE

kA

BRIE 14855
3512 3503B-5 %

B E ¢ (852) 3576 3309
{EE : (852) 3576 3963
#3141k © www.cyfoundation.com

FERMBFETE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

BERNDBFETIRE

SENEEHERAT
B

BT

SEABR 285
SHMED 02672

BRAD 18R

1182



4 C Y Foundation Group Limited Annual Report 2011/12

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report to you the annual results for the financial year
ended 31 March 2012 of C Y Foundation Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The year that has just ended was the first year when the Group was
substantially under the management of the new Board of Directors (the
“Board”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Last year was a “year of reform” for the Group. The Group has been
suffering serious losses during the last few years before the new Board
assumed control on 8 April 2011. Since then, the Board has taken a
number of serious cost control measures to improve the financial position
of the Group.

While we are seeing clear signs that the costs of the Group have been
contained at a more reasonable level, the Group’s financial results this
year were still clouded by various unresolved issues left behind by the
former board and management. The Group has devoted significant
resources to resolve those matters and during the year has initiated a
number of legal actions to recoup some of the losses and expenses
suffered by the Group in previous years. The Board will work with our legal
advisers to continue to pursue the recovery of the Group’s assets.

The Group’s packaging business, trading under the name of “Kingbox”,
has been negatively affected by the economic downturn in Europe and the
weakening of the Euro. Kingbox also saw the departures of a number of
key staff during the year and the Board has installed a new management
team on a timely basis. We are glad to see, under the relentless effort
of the new management, the turnover has been maintained at a similar
level as last year though the profit margin has been squeezed due to
the depreciation of Euro and the appreciation of Renminbi. The new
management has been and will continue to strive to maintain Kingbox's
position in Europe, and will also expand its client base in China and the
Asia Pacific region.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has placed significant emphasis on the Group’s corporate
governance since it assumed control on 8 April 2011. Various
Committees, comprising mostly of independent directors, were set
up to monitor and review the Group’s different activities on a regular
basis. Measures have been adopted to ensure investment decisions
and potential connected transactions are to be reviewed thoroughly by
independent directors and carried out with highest level of transparency.
We have also adopted a comprehensive fraud prevention program
for all employees in the Group to further enhance our internal control
environment.
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We are glad to see that at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held
in October 2011, the re-election of an ex-director, who has been charged
by the Independent Commission Against Corruption for Conspiracy to
Defraud, was voted down by our shareholders. The result has been a
major step in resolving the management integrity issue which has been
troubling the Company during the last few years.

We also welcome the Court Order handed down in April 2012 by the
High Court of Hong Kong for the amendment of the Company’s Bye-law
86(4), so that the Company is now in compliance with the relevant Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

TRADING RESUMPTION AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

We continue to work intensively with our financial and legal advisers to
fulfill the conditions for resumption of trading of the Company’s shares
at The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“Stock Exchange”). With all the
measures and efforts we have taken during the year, we are confident that
we will be able to bring the Company back on the right track in the not too
distant future.

We believe the strengthened internal control and improved corporate
governance of the Company will lay a solid foundation for our future
growth. We will continue to grow our existing business as well as explore
new business opportunities to enhance the Company’s profitability and
shareholder value.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude
and appreciation to our shareholders and business partners for their
support during the year.

I ' would also like to thank all our staff for their dedication and hard
work during the year, a year in which our Company was encountering
various difficulties. Despite facing a challenging business and market
environments, the board is determined to try even harder during the
coming year to increase the prospects for the Group. | remain confident
that we will be able to steer the Company towards a better future with the
support of all stakeholders.

Sincerely,
SNEAH Kar Loon

Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 June 2012
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s turnover
increased 2.3% to HK$148.4 million (2011: HK$145.1 million). Loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$73.5
million (2011: HK$303 million). The significant decrease in loss of the
Group for the year was mainly attributable to the significant reduction in
impairment provisions as well as reduced management and administrative
expenses.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year, the Company’s principal activity continued to be
investment holding whilst its major subsidiaries are mainly engaged
in manufacturing and sales of packaging products, operating digital
entertainment business and watch trading.

The management continued to work proactively on the resumption of
trading of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. When the
resumption is approved by the Stock Exchange, the Group will consider
acquiring additional capital to strengthen its financial base.

Facing with the challenging business and market environment, the
management will continue to adopt stringent cost control measures and
to manage the Company’s financial position in a prudent manner. The
management will also put its best effort to explore ways to expand and/or
turnaround the Group’s existing businesses so as to enhance the value of
the Group.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As at 31 March 2012, the bank and cash balances of the Group
amounted to HK$19.7 million. The Group’s bank and other borrowings
were HK$15.3 million, all are payable within one year or contain a
repayment on demand clause. The Group’s bank borrowings are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and granted with interest bearing at a
floating rate basis. The other borrowing is interest bearing at a rate of 5%
per annum.

The gearing ratio of loans against the total equity as at 31 March 2012
was 7.7%. As the majority of bank deposits and cash on hand were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, US dollars and Euros,
the Group’s exchange risk exposure depended on the movement of the
exchange rate of the aforesaid currencies.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company did not have any material acquisition, disposal and
significant investment in subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the
year ended 31 March 2012.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employed 1,057 permanent employees as at 31 March
2012, including 39 employees in Hong Kong and 1,018 in the People’s
Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong). The Group continued to review
the remuneration packages of employees with reference to the level and
composition of pay, general market condition and individual performance.
Staff benefits include contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and discretionary bonus, share option scheme, medical allowance and
hospitalization scheme and housing allowance.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, the leasehold land and building of the Group with
carrying amounts of HK$13.4 million were pledged to secure for bank
borrowings of the Group. The Group’s other borrowing is secured by
a share charge over the entire issued share capital of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statement.

LITIGATIONS

The Group has a number of pending litigations and in the opinion of the
legal counsel, it is premature to predict the outcomes. Details of litigations
are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SNEAH Kar Loon, aged 55, joined the Group in April 2011 as chairman
of the Board. Mr Sneah was the chief financial officer of the Company
from May 2007 to July 2007, the business development executive of the
Company from July 2007 to October 2007, and the chief executive officer
of the Company from November 2007 to November 2008. Mr Sneah had
a bachelor’s degree in Asian studies from Lawrence University, Wisconsin,
the United States of America, and a master’s degree in international
management from the American Graduate School of International
Management, Arizona, the United States of America. He had held senior
management positions in a global financial institution, and had over 20
years of experience in investment banking, corporate finance, and private
venture capital business.

SIK Siu Kwan, aged 44, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr Sik received
his Bachelor of Arts degree in engineering science and Master of Arts
degree from University of Oxford. He is also an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant.
He has more than 20 years of experience in investment banking and
finance. He has held senior positions with a number of major international
investment banks. Mr Sik was a non-executive director of the Company
since 1 September 2009 until his resignation on 16 November 2009. He
is currently the Company Secretary of the Company and was also the
Company Secretary of the Company since 8 April 2011 until 6 October
2011.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NG Kwok Lun, aged 53, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr Ng was
the chief financial officer of the Company from July 2008 to December
2008. Mr Ng obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the
City University of Hong Kong in 1991, and obtained a master’s degree
in business from Graduate School of Business, Strathclyde University in
2006. He is also an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretary and Administrators and
the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. He is also a fellow of The
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. He is currently the chief
financial officer of Clickoo Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAI Hock Meng, aged 56, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr Lai has a
Bachelor of Arts degree and a Master of Arts degree from the University
of Cambridge in England, majoring in economics. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst with the CFA Institute in the United States of America
and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom.
Mr Lai is currently the Chairman of Singapore-based corporate advisory
firm HML Consulting Group. Mr Lai is the independent director of various
companies listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited,
including China Energy Limited, China Essence Group Ltd., China Qilfield
Technology Services Group Limited, Delong Holdings Limited, Metax
Engineering Corp Limited and ASTI Holdings Limited. He is also the non-
executive director of PureCircle Limited, a company listed on the London
Stock Exchange.

BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan, aged 56, joined the Group in April
2011. Mr Balakrishnan obtained his bachelor’s degree in economics in
Ambherst College, Massachusetts, the United States of America in 1978
and obtained his master’s degree in journalism in Columbia University
in New York in 1980. Mr Balakrishnan has been a director of The Cool
Invester Limited, a company specialised in outsourcing editorial services
to scientific, medical and technical journals and books since 1996. Mr
Balakrishnan worked as the specialist writer on finance in Far Eastern
Economic Review from 1989 to 1994, and as the manager in Value
Partners Fund Management from 1994 to 1996.

10 Rudy Cheok Kei, aged 51, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr lo was
the chief financial officer of the Company from July 2007 to March 2008.
He is currently a corporate consultant in corporate strategy, restructuring,
mergers and acquisitions and direct investment in China. Mr lo is a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in administrative studies from York University,
Toronto, Canada and a master’s degree in business (information
technology) from Curtin University of Technology, Australia.

YONG Peng Tak, aged 44, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr Yong
holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the National University
of Singapore and a master’s degree in business administration from
the Imperial College, University of London. Mr Yong is also a chartered
financial analyst with the CFA Institute in the United States of America
and a certified public accountant with the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. Mr Yong is currently the chief executive officer
of Fortress Capital Asset Management, a licensed fund management
company in Malaysia. He has more than 20 years experience in various
senior management positions in the financial advisory, corporate finance
advisory and investment management industries.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are manufacturing and sale of packaging products,
operating digital entertainment business and watch trading.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the financial year under review are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 24 of this
Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
111. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company for the financial year under
review are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the financial
year under review are set out on page 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the period are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statement.
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ISSUE OF SHARES

During the financial year under review, there was no issue of new shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye
laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the financial year under review, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the financial year under review in the
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the financial year under review, the percentage of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers to the total turnover was 60.3%. The
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer to the
total turnover was 28.7%.

In the financial year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers to the total purchases was
26.6%. The percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier to the total purchases was 10.3%.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital had an interest in any of the major customers or suppliers
above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year under review and

up to the date of this Annual Report were as follows:

Executive Directors (EDs):

SNEAH Kar Loon
(Chairman)

SIK Siu Kwan

Dato LIM Kim Wah

(appointed on 6 April 2011)

(appointed on 6 October 2011)
(appointed on 6 April 2011 and did not offer himself for
re-election on 6 October 2011)

CHENG Chee (duty suspended with effect from 8 April 2011 and

Tock Theodore re-election as Director voted down on 6 October 2011)
WU Chuang John re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011
CAO Dongxin re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011

( )
( )
HO Chi Chung Joseph  (re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011)
YU Ping (re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011)
( )
( )
( )

ZHANG Yiwei re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011
TANG Ming re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011
HU Xichang re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011

Non-executive Directors (NEDs):

NG Kwok Lun
WOELM Samuel

(appointed on 6 April 2011)

(redesignated from executive Director to non-executive
Director on 15 July 2011 and did not offer himself for
re-election on 6 October 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors (INEDs):

LAl Hock Meng (appointed on 6 April 2011)
BALAKRISHNAN (appointed on 6 April 2011)
Narayanan

YONG Peng Tak (appointed on 6 April 2011)

|0 Rudy Cheok Kei (appointed on 6 April 2011 and re-designated from
non-executive Director to independent non-executive
Director on 6 October 2011)

LAW Chiu William (appointed on 6 April 2011 and resigned on
1 March 2012)

Dato MYHRE Carl (appointed on 6 April 2011 and did not offer himself for

Gunnar re-election on 6 October 2011)
WANG Shanchuan (re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011)
NG Pui Lung (re-election as Director voted down on 6 April 2011)
FUNG Pui Cheung (did not offer himself for re-election as Director on
Eugene 6 April 2011)

S

ARARRARBEYRFEERBEAFRAM/ILZE
=0T

BTES:

BRw(FE) (RIT——FNASBEZRE)

28 (RZZ——F+ASBREM)

LIM Kim (RZE——FHANREZIR

Wah & RIE——F+ANBTBRETAES)

B2 {2 (BER_T——ENA\BEEERERA
BEERT——FTARNARER)

Rt (BEREER_T——FDNARARER)
ERH (ERREFN_T——FOARARER)
fasT (BRREER _Z—HFNARARER)
B (BEREER_Z—FNARARER)
REME (ERREEN _T——FOARARER)
B (ERAEEN_T——FOARARER)
5 (BEREER_T——FNARARER)
FHTES:

RER (RZB——FONARNBEZ)

WOELM Samuel  (R=ZE——FLA+RAMRITESATA
FHROTEERN-_T——FE+A BT

EEETAES)

BEHITES

B (RZZ——FMABEZRT)

BALAKRISHNAN  (R=Z——FmAXHEZE)

Narayanan
B¥E (RZE——FHANBEZT)

Hhe s (RZE——FHARPEZIR
R-E——F+AXBRFHTEEHT
BBNENMTEE)

g (\ ifiﬁ@ﬂ/\ﬁ%é{f&

Z——F=A—RHEM)

MYHRE Carl (m:g——imﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁ&

Gunnar &% R-Z——F+ A BIERETAESE)
Filll (éuﬁ§$m_$——$mﬂﬂaﬁa£)
RE#E (EEREEN T ——FWMASBHEER)
BIEE (N—Z——FNA BTEREIAES)



In accordance with section 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs LAl
Hock Meng, BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan and NG Kwok Lun shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory obligation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at the end of the financial year under review, none of the Directors,
chief executive or their associates had any personal, family, corporate
or other beneficial interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise as required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

FEEREEERAT —E—-Z-——#Efs 13

B A2 R 48 B E87(1)ik %8 E Bf L A4
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan 5¢ 4 & 2 B i 50 4 15 72 g
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at the end of the financial year under review, the persons/companies, RALIERFER @ IBEFS=NEEIEHIEXVEE
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had interests = N 5 = {§ X TR E M AR BIR BB G0 2 FigmE
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would fall to 77 7 #25 & 50 MATecsE - oA+ Aal(EFESH AN
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of  R{TERABEL 51 ) G AR A R0 SAEREIR 5 2 ik ok

Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register of the Company were A& T :

as follows:
Long Positions in Shares RG2HR
Number
Name Capacity of shares Shareholding
HE 14 R EE BRE
(%)
Dato POH Po Lian Interest of controlled corporation 3,246,264,127 46.58
BEREE SREHER 2
Luck Continent Limited Beneficial owner 3,246,264,127 46.58
HMBRAR BEnlEBA
CHENG Chee Tock Theodore Interest of controlled corporation 1,757,142,856 25.21
("Mr Cheng”) @ AR 2
Bz ([ kLD @
YUNG Leonora (“Ms Yung”) @ Interest of controlled corporation 1,757,142,856 25.21
KEg([&Rztl)e RIEGDEE 2 R
Super Bonus Management Limited Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 21.52
(“Super Bonus”) @ EnEBA
Note: B 5T
@ The interest was held by Super Bonus, Treasure Bay Assets Limited (“Treasure @ Itk # %5 73 B3 Super Bonus Management Limited + Treasure
Bay”), Pacific Equity Development Corp. (“Pacific Equity”), Super Mark Profits Bay Assets Limited ([ Treasure Bay|) * Pacific Equity
Corp. (“Super Mark”), Golden View Worldwide Limited (“Golden View”) and Super Development Corp. ([ Pacific Equity]) * Super Mark Profits
Crown Venture Inc. (“Super Crown”). Each of Super Bonus, Treasure Bay, Pacific Corp. ([Super Mark]) + Golden View Worldwide Limited
Equity, Super Mark and Golden View was wholly owned by Ms Yung (the spouse ([Golden View]) & Super Crown Venture Inc. ([ Super
of Mr Cheng), whereas Super Crown was owned as to 50% by Ms Yung. Mr Crownl) ¥ B o X 5t &£ 2 B 8 8 2z + 2 & # B Super
Cheng was deeded to be interested in all these shares. Bonus * Treasure Bay - Pacific Equity * Super Mark
Golden View * I #8 Super Crown 50% Z 125 © A LA
BREBZERN 2
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT NBRBFREZ B MY

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within ~ IRIEAR QRIS 2 ARER RRESAA - RAFH
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to  TIEE Rl Z S & BEERAI1T HHY - 2N A BB (R 25 =) B8 B
the issue of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained sufficient HFEREAFHR2 HHIEFHEE RO ARIFRE -
public float of not less than 25% of its shares in the hands of the public ~ AR FEEIFHE 2 RH AR RGN 2 25% A L -
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of this

Annual Report.



EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the end of the reporting period of the
Group are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the period.

AUDITOR

ANDA CPA Limited retired as auditor of the Company in the AGM held on
6 October 2011 and its re-appointment as auditor of the Company for the
ensuing year was passed in the AGM.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to re-appoint ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company to hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
SNEAH Kar Loon

Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 June 2012

hEEEEEMERAT "B —F-—FEEHS

BEHPRRER

AEE 2 BRBEPREFRABHARNGAVBEE
BiEE36 °

¥ER

ARRRBEHAILR B EARBELTRANE14AE
TIREFBEREZMEZS °

B BLEm

LEGHMEBHARDIAN —E——F+HANAN
BRBFREGRE/ARAIZEE - HEHZERA
RABER—FZRBORNBERBEAS LESERE -

—HARBARREREGIMEBAERDFRBZEK
BEREARARR TEMRBFASERRILORER
HRBIG BRI TR RBFERE LR -

REESFE
E=
BRM

B —2——HFXF—H

15




16 C Y Foundation Group Limited Annual Report 2011/12

The Board adopted a set of corporate governance principles (“CG
Principles”) which aligns with or is more restrictive than all requirements
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) and
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 14 and Appendix 10 respectively
to the Listing Rules. The Board updated the CG Principles on 12 March
2012 to comply with the amendments to the Listing Rules that effective
from 1 April 2012. The Board had made specific written enquiry to all the
Directors and confirms that all the Directors have compiled with the rules
set out in the Model Code during the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

ADOPTION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRINCIPLES

The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code to the Listing Rules throughout the
financial year ended 31 March 2012 except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.4.1

Code Provision A.4.1 provides, inter alia, that non-executive Directors

should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the Directors’ Report

of the Annual Report.

The Board monitors the development and financial performance and
sets strategic directions of the Group’s business. Matters including
material investment decisions, approving financial accounts, declaration
of dividend, are reserved to the Board. The management implements
the Board’s decisions, makes business proposals and reports to the
Board on the overall performance of the Group. Daily operations and
administration of the business are delegated to the 2 EDs and the senior

management of the Company.

The Board comprises 7 Directors, consisting of 2 EDs, 1 NED and 4
INEDs. Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section of

“Directors’ Profile” of this Annual Report.
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During the CG Period, the Board had held 7 physical Board meetings. Out
of the 7 Board meetings, 2 of them were held to discuss and/or approve
the annual and the interim financial performance/results of the Group while
5 of them were held to discuss, among other things, various projects
contemplated by the Group and the legal matters of the Group.

During the CG Period, the attendances of each of the Directors at the
above Directors’ meetings are presented as follows:

hEEEEEMERAT "B —F-—FEEHS

REXERME  EFECBTLAARESES
& MEREFEGET  HPMRTIAEN L&
HfERER s FERTHPRERR FEMET B
HRARBE (AP RE) A RERETHERIER N
FORREIEMERT

REEERRH SEFN LtEEggmRILFERE
MEFNAT

Director Capacity Attendance E= 56 HEER
SNEAH Kar Loon ED & Chairman T BRR BITESRER 7/7
SIK Siu Kwan ED 3/3 Bk BITES 3/3
NG Kwok Lun NED 6/7  REf EHITESE 6/7
IO Rudy Cheok Kei INED 47 fhEE B EHITES 4/7
LAl Hock Meng INED 7 fRER BYIERITES 7/7
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan INED 7/T  BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan YB3 3E#iT&E% 7/7
YONG Peng Tak INED T BEE BYIEHITES 7/7
Dato LIM Kim Wah Ex-ED 4/4 M Kim Wah &% FigTES 4/4
LAW Chiu William Ex-INED 6/6 i BB IEHITEE  6/6
Dato MYHRE Carl Gunnar Ex-INED 4/4  MYHRE Carl Gunnar 2% s8N IEITESE 44
WOELM Samuel Ex-NED 5/6  WOELM Samuel AIJEITE S 5/6
CHENG Chee Tock Theodore Ex-ED N/A o BIEITES i B

(duty suspended since (Bra—=—F

8 April 2011) MANBRERE)

During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has or maintained any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with any of
the other Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the CG Period, the roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer were held separately by Mr. SNEAH Kar Loon and Mr. SIK Siu
Kwan respectively. The Chairman is responsible in leading the Board for
the overall development strategy of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer
is delegated with the authorities to manage the operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

On 12 March 2012, the Board established the Nomination Committee in
compliance with the requirements of the relevant CG Code Provision. It
is responsible for formulating policy and making recommmendations to the
Board on nomination, appointment of Directors and Directors succession.
Details of the Nomination Committee are set out in the section of
“Nomination Committee” below.

REEERHME  HE LI EEREMEALESER
SRR - 25 KRREMEX IBHERRE -

EFRERITHAR

REXERNE  AERREEREKBELED M
HEXERTRAEZBMA TFRAETREETTE
Y ERHERERER  MITREREREEEEER
NCIE 3

EECZEAERER

Exen T _F-At-_HKRIREEZE® N
NABEMERERTZHAE - REZEGAAMRE
- ZIEFNEFLUIHERREMESSREZE
o RELZBEZFHBERTIIREZB S —HR -
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The Nomination Committee shall ensure the Board comprise members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies, operation,
challenges and opportunities.

All Directors are not subject to a specific term of appointment except that
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws including the retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. The procedures for election as Directors are available
and accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.cyfoundation.
com/ped.htm.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained a Remuneration
Committee as required under the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is composed of one NED and two INEDs and chaired by Mr.
IO Rudy Cheok Kei. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and determining the remuneration, compensation and benefits
of Directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at http.//www.cyfoundation.com/RemunerationCommittee.pdf.

During the CG Period, the Remuneration Committee had held 3 physical
meetings for the purpose of considering the remuneration of the Directors.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee, and the respective
attendances of the members are presented as follows:

REZEGEREEFTCARARELRAT EEL
BB NWERAKBZXBER - KKK 2
B Bk -

FIEESTRIETELY  HREARBERAFZ AT
MEWERE  UTAEXSER(BEAZLE=FhK
BERE—R) - EFEREFEHNAR @ ntto://
www. cyfoundation.com/ped.htm °

FMEES

REEPZEGHHE  ARFRBEEEATARE
—EREFMNEES - FINEESH —EIFNITES
NMEBIIIERNTERMAR TRk EEEEEFE
& FMEEGRERIRATESTRSREEAER
ZMe - mEREN - FNEEenBESEEDHN
AN A 2 # Uk http://www.cyfoundation.com/doc/c_
RemunerationCommittee.pdf °

REXERMME FMZE@CRTT=ZRAES
o BEEEBERZHM -

FHZE e AR EZERESBHEBRZIMT

Member Attendance & HEBR
IO Rudy Cheok Kei (chairman of committee) 3/3  HhEHE(ZEEERE) 3/3
YONG Peng Tak 3/3 B¥E 3/3
NG Kwok Lun 0/0 REfm 0/0
Dato MYHRE Carl Gunnar (ex-committee member) 2/3  MYHRE Carl Gunnar & (siZ 82K 8) 2/3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RELEE®

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 12 March 2012
as required under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee is composed
of one NED and two INEDs and chaired by Mr. IO Rudy Cheok Kei. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.cyfoundation.com/doc/NominationCommittee.pdf.

RAGRBEEESRTAHRER - ——F=A+=
AR IREZEEES - REZECH —BIENTES
NMBEIENITEEMANK - WHHEELERFE
e RAEECAEARESTEHARETEAULESE
EAGTENEESRHMERZ - REZESNBERE
2 & 7 R R B 2 483k http.//www.cyfoundation.com/
doc/c_NominationCommittee.pdf °



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained an Audit
Committee as required under the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
composed of three Independent Non-executive Directors and chaired by
Mr. LAl Hock Meng. The Audit Committee is responsible for considering
the appointment of external auditor, review the interim and annual
financial statements before submission to the Board and the Group’s
internal control systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available and accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.
cyfoundation.com/doc/AuditCommittee.pdf.

During the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held 3 physical meetings.
Annual/interim results and/or internal audit of the Group were discussed

during the meetings.

The composition of the Audit Committee, and the respective attendances

hEEEEEARAT —T-—F-—EEEHE

BREES

REESEERE  ARFBRELETRAUBE &
REEZEZEG ERZESH=-RBEIIATE
FHEK - WHBZALEHEER BREEGEE
EEAEEINEZEAMRBLI M 2EE B
FHEHR2FHMBRE  AERRXEFGREEALE
BErARLEEGE BREZESNBESHEDEHN
AN B 2 49 3k htto://www.cyfoundation.com/doc/c
AuditCommittee.pdf °

REEERMME  ELZEGCRITZRAREH -
PeRDRAEN A FR TR BEE
&/ S RENAEE R EZEEMET

BERZEG AN RZFXREEAHFEBRLZ7/M

of the members are presented as follows: T

Member Attendance )5 4= HEER
LAl Hock Meng (chairman of committee) 3/3 MRER(ZEEER) 3/3
BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan 3/3 BALAKRISHNAN Narayanan 3/3
IO Rudy Cheok Kei 0/0 ke 0/0
LAW Chiu Wiliam (ex-committee member) 33 BEHB(WEEEKE) 3/3
For the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Audit Committee had Fyﬁéki_ T——F=ZA=Z+—HULTBRFE BZRE
performed the following duties: BEEHITUTEE -

- reviewed and commented on the half-yearly and the annual financial
report of the Group of the financial year under review before
submission to the Board for adoption and publication;

- met with the auditor and independent accountant to discuss
the financial matters of the Group and reviewed their findings,

recommendations and representations;

- reviewed and approved the terms of engagement and scope of
services of the auditor and independent accountant; and

- reviewed the Company’s works on internal control.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 March 2012 provided by the Company’s auditor, ANDA CPA
Limited, are as follows:

B4 B 57 A

ARBGEMLZEGHMEEMARATANRBEE_F
—ZHEZA=tT - ALEFERHEEZLIFEZRFZ
BRAFBT -

HK$’000 FET

Audit services 785 EZRTE 785
Non-audit services — review on interim report, interim and TR -EF P SRS - PHEIR

annual results announcement 113 FEEE NG 113

Total 898 st 898

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the financial year
under review, the Directors have:

- based on a going concern basis;

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
and

- made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report from pages 22 to 23.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees and the holding of offices of the Group
were based on internal equity factors and external market conditions and
will be reviewed from time to time.

The remuneration of the employees including Executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors generally consists of:

- fixed salary/allowance — which is set according to the duties,
responsibilities, skills, experiences and market influences;

- pension — which is based on the Mandatory Provident Fund
Contribution Scheme or the local statutory pension scheme;
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- RESEQERE:
- WKBREESFBELERHERZERE K

—  {FHEE - RV RAEEZ AR AR -

ARBZBERARRNF BRI ARETEZHACD
HNF 22 E 23 A 2 BUREEIRENA -

Fr R

RNEEREE 2 HMMECE BB EE D ER R ER A
ERINEFTIR - W T LARRES o

BRERATEZLIFNTES) 2ME—REAT

‘A
BIRMERK -

‘DJH

- BETEHE R - DIRBEBE
RBETISFERE
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- short-term variable incentive — which may include commission,
discretionary cash bonus depending on the achievement of short-
term corporate objectives and/or personal targets;

- long-term variable incentive — which may include share options
designed to encourage long-term commitment; and

- other benefits in kind — which may include accommodation,
company car and related services.

The remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors was at a fixed
annual/quarterly payment.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and reviewing an
effective system of internal control and safeguarding the assets and the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as well.

The Group has established policies and procedures for approval and
control of expenditures. Pursuant to a risk-based methodology, the Board
plans its internal control review with resources being focused on higher
risk areas. Internal control review has been conducted on ongoing basis
to ensure that the policies and procedures in place are adequate. Any
findings and recommendations would be discussed by the management
and followed up properly and timely.

The Directors had engaged Frederick C.Y. Wong & Company to perform
an independent review on the internal control systems of the Group.
The review report showed that the Group maintained an adequate and
effective internal control system and no major control deficiency had been
identified. The scope and findings of the review had been reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company. The Company
establishes various communication tools to ensure the shareholders are
kept well informed of timely information of the Company. These include
the Annual General Meeting, Special General Meetings, the Annual and
Interim Reports, announcements, circulars, notices. Such documents are
accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.cyfoundation.com.

By order of the Board
SIK Siu Kwan
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 1 June 2012
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ANDA

CPA Limited
REGRMEBMERAE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
C Y FOUNDATION GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C Y Foundation
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 24 to 110, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
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risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION ON THE
CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2011, which formed the basis for the corresponding figures
presented in the current year’s consolidated financial statements, was
qualified by us because of the significance of the possible effects of
the limitations on the scope of the audit including (i) Opening balances
and corresponding figures; (i) Change in fair value of convertible note
receivables, impairment of various assets, write-off of property, plant and
equipment and share of loss of associates recognised in that year; and
(iii) Limited access to accounting books and records. Details of these
qualified audit opinions are set out in our independent auditor’s report
dated 31 August 2011 and included in the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2011. Our opinion on the current year’s
consolidated financial statements is also qualified because of the possible
effects of these matters on the comparability of the current year’s figures
and the corresponding figures.

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding
figures of the matter in basis for qualified opinion on corresponding figures
paragraph, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its
results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

ANDA CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 1 June 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—Z——F=A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—=E-—=fF —E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b BEET T BT
Turnover =E 9 148,361 145,075
Cost of sales HEKAR (110,405) (91,349)
Gross profit EF| 37,956 53,726
Other income E Al A 9 16,482 30,357
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SRR (4,196) (4,768)
Administrative expenses ITHEERY (99,534) (161,777)
Loss from operations RELEEK 2 EE (49,292) (82,462)
Change in fair value of wEMES
investment properties N EZE 14,375 36,080
Change in fair value of ABRREREWR
convertible note receivables NEEE - 61,612)
Exchange gains P 5 W 1,528 1,521
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries T E A B E 389 -
Reclassification of foreign currency HEMBARBENER
translation reserve upon disposal Bm 2 INEME
of subsidiaries 9,507 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE (40,793) (45,349)
Impairment of various assets RIEEEZRE (256) (118,662)
Property, plant and equipment written off WsEYISE - HEE RERIE (3,211) (10,220)
Share of results of associates JE(RE AN B2 ¥E45 - (12,118)
Finance costs 7% & 10 (408) (989)
Loss before tax BRELAIET IR (68,161) (293,811)
Income tax Fris®t 11 (6,625) (10,549)
Loss for the year REEEE 12 (74,786) (304,360)
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wk -
Change in fair value of BRI E YR
owner-occupied properties ¥XTERYEL
when transferred to N EEZE)
investment properties 25,956 3,363
Exchange differences on HEBIMEE ST
translating foreign operations EECEREZR 4,988 7,369
Foreign currency translation reserve HENBARBEN ERE
reclassified to profit or loss upon B 2 NS E S
disposal of subsidiaries (9,507) -
Income tax relating to components Ema2mlaEsBme
of other comprehensive income TERAFTIS (6,489) (841)
Total other comprehensive income TEERBIZ
for the year, net of tax Hit 2wk AEZE 14,948 9,891
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAEHEEHLE (59,838) (294,469)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEERFESSE :
Owners of the Company NBHER A (73,521) (302,972)
Non-controlling interests eI (1,265) (1,388)
(74,786) (804,360)
Total comprehensive loss UTALTEEREE
for the year attributable to: 2HEEBEERE
Owners of the Company Fi/NEIE 2PN (58,645) (293,148)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A (1,193) (1,321)
(59,838) (294,469)
Loss per share SRER

Basic (HK cents per share) EAR (AW 15 (1.06) (4.35)




PEEEEERRAT

As at 31 March 2012

— =

—=

RZTE——F=A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——fF =
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
BaE BEET T BT
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investment properties wEME 16 175,752 110,937
Property, plant and equipment Wz - HES R EE 17 20,272 43,057
Intangible assets mEE 18 338 333
Goodwill kS 19 15,138 55,931
211,500 210,258
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 13,661 29,796
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A R 23 26,579 33,329
Due from a related party [k i 5 50E - 1,185
Held-to-maturity investment BEERHARKRE - 2,000
Current tax assets MEHIEEE - 295
Pledged bank deposits EIRRITER 24 - 2,428
Bank and cash balances RTINS 8 24 19,725 36,638
59,965 105,671
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERR 25 30,473 37,585
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA - 46
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 26 15,305 6,180
Current tax liabilities MEHIBEE 395 -
46,173 43,811
Net current assets RBEEFEE 13,792 61,860
Total assets less WEER
current liabilities rEas 225,292 272,118
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 27 27,941 14,929
NET ASSETS BEE 197,351 257,189
Capital and reserves BEARRGHE
Share capital A&7 28 6,969 6,969
Reserves ] 189,276 247,921
Equity attributable to owners RAREEE A
of the Company FE(LHER 196,245 254,890
Non-controlling interests Eealivg 1,106 2,299
TOTAL EQUITY RS 197,351 257,189

The consolidated financial statements on pages 24 to 110 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 1 June 2012 and are

signed on its behalf by:
Approved by:

SNEAH Kar Loon
Director

Sik Siu Kwan
Director
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—Z——F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BOIRRARL
Foreign
Asset curency  Capital Non-
Share Capital ~ revaluation Other translation redemption  Reserve Accumulated controlling
Sharecapital  premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve reserve fund losses Total  interests Total
Rt BOER  EAGE REEGRR  RUBR JWEERR fARORE  BRE RNEE &t FoREE o]
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKBOOD  HKBO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSOD0  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00
T T BT AT M BB METn MTr BT BT AfT BETR
(Note ) (Note b) (Note )
(Fira) (Hkb) (ke)

At1 Aprl 2010 RZF-F50A-R 6%9 79981 34 084 (659) 24879 1190 195 (28833  H47904 1264 549168

Total comprehensive income/ ERRENN/

(oss| for the year (FEaE - - - 252 - 7302 - - PR 93 (1321)  (294469)

Recognifon ofequiy-setted Bl

share-based payment LRAEREH - - 134 - - - - - - 134 - 134

Captal contoution by non- (7

contoling sherehalders R

ofasubsidary LULE - - - - - - - - - - 235 2356
Lapse of share opios EREXT - - (£55) - - - - - 15 - - -
At31 March 2011 e )

and 1 Aprl 2011 n-F-—%mA-8 6969 799,811 3 3,206 (585) 3,181 1,190 185 (368050) 254890 2299 %7189
Tota comprchensive ncome/ EhRENL/

loss)for the year (BE)gE - - - 1o - (A5 - - () (864 (L9 (59839)

Lapse ofshare options BRERT - - £} - - - - - 3 - - -

At31 March 2012 H-F-2%2f=1-A 6969 799811 - 2,613 (555 21590 1,190 135 (661568 196,45 1,106 197,351

Notes: FI5E -

() The capital reserve represents the fair value of the number of unexercised (@) BARBEDIRERIEMENE BN ERGN 2 €5t HE
share options granted to employees of the Company recognised in accordance REGEPBEREMTL4ERZR TFREEZARITEEREZ
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note 4 to the HEZAFE -
consolidated financial statements.

(o) Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration and the book (o) H b A E IR A B R AUk S 2 BBIMES B AT 4 BB E
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable to the BEEIAREBBEZREBERDER Z Z5 -
additional interest acquired in subsidiaries.

() Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (©) BIEPEARKMBE(FER]) 2BBERRER - e

(the “PRC”), certain subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to set aside a

portion of their profit after income tax. The reserve fund is restricted as to its use.

FREIARSL 2 B A BIZRIRIUE M ab ) TR OE M R S R
& WRHIER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #&=—Z——F=A=1+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E-—C—fF —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FEE BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBRERE
Loss before tax MELRTE B (68,161) (293,811)
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs WsE A 408 989
Equity-settled share-based payment AR T 2 R B4R - 134
Share of results of associates DEEE N B 2 A - 12,118
Interest income F B A (692) (2,779)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 7 2,025
Changes in fair value of WEMEZ
investment properties NEEZE) (14,375) (36,080)
Changes in fair value of convertible AR SRR FE UK 2
note receivables NEZE) - 61,612
Changes in fair value of derivative MEEMIAZ
financial instruments NFEEE) - 1,388
Depreciation of property, Y% - BB AR
plant and equipment e 3,589 11,227
Loss on disposal of derivative HETESRTA
financial instruments 2K 829 1,557
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z WS 30 (389) -
Reclassification of foreign currency HEHEARR
translation reserve upon disposal ENEEERC
of subsidiaries HINESIRE (G (9,507) -
Impairment of goodwill [EESERE 40,793 45,349
Impairment of various assets BSHEHEEZRE 256 118,662
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE - S KR iE
plant and equipment 2B () 558 (18,948)
Reversal of impairment loss Hib e
on other receivables REEERD (972) (581)
Property, plant and equipment written off WEHTE - R RB 3,211 10,220
Inventories written off FEMH - 119
Waiver of other payables N HAEN (954) (1,092)
Operating cash flows before EEELEHAEZ
working capital changes KERERE (45,399) (87,891)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 15,879 (10,4083)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 &k H Ao > 7,722 5,678
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 R HEMPERK
other payables CR),/ (6,415) 8,642
Cash used in operations KEFRRE (28,213) (83,974)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EEH (125) ®)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) RE /(B EAFIES 95 (1,123)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBEAZRLFHE (28,243) (85,105)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—Z——F=A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E-C—fF —T—F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B s BT T BT
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHMBRERE
Redemption of held-to-maturity investment B A E2HIR 2 &E& 2,000 -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EPRITFRRL 2,428 19,622
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE #1% - #2s MR E (3,853) (14,181)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVEE = (466)
Advance to non-controlling shareholders —MEM B ATz FEER
of a subsidiary AR Z T8 - (2,133)
Net cash outflow arising on HERBARZ
disposal of subsidiaries WE ML FEE 30 (26) -
Payments for settlement of derivative HEETESRMIEAEZ
financial instruments NS (875) (1,557)
Interest received 2HFIE 692 1,103
Proceeds from disposal of property, HMEDE - s REREY
plant and equipment Frf8s0a 41 79,618
Deposits paid for game software PERL TR AR
development and licences s - (30,000)
Net cash generated from RETHEEZ
investing activities REFE 407 52,006
Cash flows from financing activities RETEMBRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITEE (875) (42,192
Interest paid EAFE (151) (989)
Repayment of finance lease payables EEREMRNENTRIA = (414)
Repayment from/(advance to) —HEATZ
a related party i (FE) 1,185 (1,165)
Repayment to related companies BEREARESY - (15)
New bank and other borrowings raised BEESMBITREMEE 10,000 4,816
Capital injection from non-controling FEERRAR R
shareholders ZEE - 2,356
Repayment to directors BECEER - (39
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEBHELE (EA)Z
financing activities ReFE 10,159 (37,642)
Net decrease in cash ReRBRESEEEE
and cash equivalents BB (17,677) (70,741)
Cash and cash equivalents RREYI RS K
at beginning of the reporting period REeEEEE 36,638 105,462
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate  MEE R & g) » 2 764 1,917
Cash and cash equivalents RBEHAREERRESEEEE
at end of the reporting period 19,725 36,638

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BE&RELSZEEBER 20
Bank and cash balances IRITMIR & 454 19,725 36,638




GENERAL INFORMATION

C Y Foundation Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (“the Directors”), the Company’s controlling
shareholder is Luck Continent Limited (“Luck Continent”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
of the annual report respectively. The shares of the Company are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) but have been suspended from trading since 31 August
2010.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Suspension of trading in the shares of the Company

At the request of the Company, trading in its shares on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 31 August 2010. Reference
is made to the Company’s public announcement dated 31 August
2010 in respect of suspension of trading (the “Suspension”) in the
shares of the Company and various subsequent announcements of
the Company since the Suspension.

On 6 April 2011, the Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange, in which the Stock Exchange stated the following
conditions in relation to the resumption of trading in the shares of
the Company:

(@  inform the market all material information that is necessary
to appraise the Group’s position in light of Mr. Cheng Chee
Tock Theodore (“Mr. Cheng”)’s involvement of the charges
by the Independent Commission Against Corruption as
mentioned in the Company’s announcement of 7 March
2011;

(b)  inform the market the findings of the independent reviews
over the financial position of the Group;

(c) demonstrate that there is no regulatory concern about
management integrity which will pose a risk to investors and
damage market confidence; and

(d)  demonstrate that there are adequate internal control systems
to meet obligations under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—Z——F=A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Suspension of trading in the shares of the Company
(Continued)

The Company should also comply with the Listing Rules and all
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong and its place of
incorporation before resumption. The Stock Exchange may modify
any of the above and/or impose further conditions at its discretion.

In response to the resumption conditions above, the Company’s
financial advisor has made various submissions on behalf of the
Company to the Stock Exchange with a view to seek the approval
for the resumption of trading in the shares of the Company. The
Company will inform the public once there is further significant
development of the resumption process.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 April 2011. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior
years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable disclosures required by the
Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, investments and derivatives which are carried at their
fair values. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (‘HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the Directors to exercise their judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements are disclosed in note 5 to
these financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has
control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary. On the disposal of foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that foreign operation shall be reclassified from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date
fair values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, available-for-sale investment), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised on the
same basis as would be required if the previously held equity
interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policies of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If
the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s share of
the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that associate and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group‘s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

()

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i)  Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TEE:BE(E)

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method. Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. The
principal annual rates are as follows:
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TEE:BE(E)

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

Y - WERRRE(GR)

Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 50 years

Over the shorter of 20%-33% or over the remaining unexpired terms of the leases

MHE i REF TEAVEABR 2k 50 & (FREE & /%)
Leasehold improvements
HEMERE 20%-33% S AH £k HARR (FREE & M)

19%-33%
19%-33%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
FiHh - RERPRERE

Plant and machinery 20%
=N = 20%
Gaming machines and systems 20%-33%
e SN e 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 10%-20%
P 10%-20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is measured
initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable to the
property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

(@)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

The Group as lessor

@

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

(@)

(b)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. License
has definite useful life and is amortised on straight-line basis
over fifty years. Software are amortised on a straight-line
basis over five years.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair
values can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible
assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the held-to-maturity investments
are impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the investments and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods and recognised
in profit or loss when an increase in the investments’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to
the restriction that the carrying amount of the investments at
the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Investments other than held-to-maturity investments are
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss or available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESHE(E)
(Continued)

Investments (Continued)

()

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets not classified as trade and other receivables, held-
to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective evidence
that the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are recognised in the profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in the profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through the profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in the profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivate
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event
the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature
of the hedge relationship.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount
of the receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the recoverable
amount of the receivables can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

(@)

Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and trading
of raw materials are recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers.

Services income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Employee benefits

(@

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESHHE(E)
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

()

()

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a ceiling of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of
the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and business associates. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the
date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESHE(E)

(Continued)

Related parties AEAL

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. BEATRIEEANERBERNEEBRE -

(@  Aperson or a close member of that person’s family is related @ MEATIER  ZRALHZEBALH

to the Group if that person: RBK B EWG AEAEE G

()  has control or joint control over the Group; () HAEEFEIRE R ERIEHIE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEBSEATEN =

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) BAEHEIARFHEAREEEE
Company or of a parent of the Company. AB e

(o)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of the b) HEATHIER  ZEBFERRAEANE

following conditions applies: 5 B

()  The entity and the Company are members of the same () ZEBMAEEBR-—SEMNKE
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and (BNERRATF - MEBRARRFRHE
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). NE)EABEE) ©

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) *fl?i BaRS *ET BHBEANA
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a EHE (AR —SEMNKENHE
group of which the other entity is a member). ABEERE E S—ERERE

EEHKE) ©

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MEEREABRFE=ZFHEED

£

(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —EEEAF-EENALELER
other entity is an associate of the third entity. F—ERAE-FROBEA -

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) “ERBAAEENEANEERSGEH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity HEENEEENMEROEEREE
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, FEtEl -
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi) FREEEX () EBFTHEAIM A TIEHIK
identified in (a). HEES

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (Vi) REO)FTEIEEREBEERTZEMNA
over the entity or is a member of the key management T AERERBEEENTAR) SR
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). RLYN=I



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group‘s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group's various lines of business
in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except goodwill,
investment properties, deferred tax assets, investments, inventories
and receivables to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

Event after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(@) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the end of the reporting
period at their fair value of approximately HK$175,752,000
(2011: HK$110,937,000). The fair value was based on a
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent
firm of professional valuers using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated profit or loss.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated and intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful
lives and residual values involve management’s estimation.
The Group assesses annually the residual value and the
useful life of the property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets and if the expectation differs from the original
estimates, such a difference may impact the depreciation and
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed in
the future period.

(c)  Write-off and impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for and write-off of property, plant
and equipment are recognised for the amounts by which
the carrying amounts exceed their recoverable amounts,
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates. No impairment was provided for
both years. During the year, property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$3,211,000 (2011: HK$10,220,000) was
written off.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group performs tests
on whether there has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. The recoverable amounts
of intangible assets are determined based on value in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value-in use calculations. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying value of intangible
assets was approximately HK$338,000 (2011: HK$333,000)
(net of accumulated amortisation and impairment loss of
approximately HK$36,006,000 (2011: HK$38,207,000)).

(e)  Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. At the end of the
reporting period, the carrying amounts of goodwill was
approximately HK$15,138,000 (2011: HK$55,931,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$92,939,000 (2011: HK$51,485,000). Details of
impairment testing on goodwill are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

() Impairment loss recognised in respect of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments

The policy for provision of impairment loss of deposits
and other receivables of the Group is determined by the
management based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each deposits and receivables. At
the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of other
receivables, deposits, and prepayments were approximately
HK$6,598,000 (2011: HK$10,557,000) (net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$44,301,000 (2011:
HK$54,095,000)).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consist of debt which includes
bank and other borrowings as disclosed in note 26, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost
of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior periods.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related party, derivative financial
instruments, held-to-maturity investment, pledged bank deposits,
bank and cash balances, trade and other payables, amounts due
to directors and related companies and bank and other borrowings
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currencies of the Group
entities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s entities operating in the PRC have minimal
exposures to foreign currency risk as most of their business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”), the functional currencies of those
entities. The turnover of the Group’s PRC entities are
substantially denominated in RMB. As the trade receivable
and payables the Group’s PRC entities are denominated
in RMB, the Directors do not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with them. The foreign
currency risk exposure of the PRC entities arising from
business transactions was insignificant.

The Group’s Hong Kong entities trade with international
customers and are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (‘US$”), EURO (“EUR”), Great Britain
pounds (“GBP”), Australian dollars (“AUD”) and Renminbi
(“RmMB”).

7.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2011: 5%) increase and decrease in US$, EUR, GBP, AUD
and RMB against HK$ 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates with all other
variables held constant. A positive/(negative) number below
indicates a decrease/(increase) in loss for the year where
US$, EUR, GBP, AUD and RMB strengthen/weakened 5%
(2011: 5%) against HK$.

7.

TREREERFEREEE)

(a)

S LB ()

TREAMAREBE T - BUT - RKEE R
TRAREEETHAEREESS(ZF
——F 5%) ZHRE - 5% (—F——F:
5%) TINEBRAIERE TR A B ERIMNER I
REPTE A R E LR - BNE IR E R E X
Z AT BE L PR ERT A - BURMEDTZBIE
ASMEEHE 2 REIAR » W 6% 2 fE =X
BEMAERMBERFTE ZBERTR
BEMRYFAEREETRHE - TRZLE
2 (ABORTEL BT - ®E - AT
RARKEAEREINETHE,B2EE% (—F
——F:5%) - FEEBRD, (M) -

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1t—HLEE

2012 2011
—B-C-F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
HK$ strengthened against: BITHATESAE -
EUR BT (838) (813)
RMB AR 136 331
AUD SRIT = (122)
uss$ ES (201) (128)
GBP R (84) (59)
(Increase)/decrease in loss FEEEOCEM),
for the year: A (987) (791)

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding
derivative financial instruments, trade and other receivables,
bank and cash balances, trade and other payables
denominated in US$, EUR, GBP, AUD and RMB at the end of
the reporting period.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

7. TREAREEBRERBK(E)

(b) Interest rate risk (b) FIER

The interest income is derived from the Group’s current and
short-term time deposits that carry interest at the respective
banking deposit rate of the banks located in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to its fixed-rate convertible note receivables (see note 21 for
details). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk,
primarily in relation to its variable-rate bank deposits (see note
24 for details) and bank borrowings (see note 26 for details).
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s bank deposits are short-term in nature and the
exposure of the interest rate risk is minimal and no sensitivity
to interest rate risk is presented.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of base lending rate
published by the People’s Bank of China and the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At the end of the reporting period, it is estimated that a
general 100 basis point (2011: 100 basis point) increase
or decrease in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase or decrease the Group’s loss for
the year ended and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$44,000 (2011: HK$62,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that a change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next reporting period.
The analysis was performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks in Hong Kong with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies and
authorised banks in the PRC with high credit ratings.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 39% (2011:
26%) and 77% (2011: 74%) of the total trade receivables are
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The credit risk on held-to-maturity investment is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management will closely monitor the cash
flows generated from operations and the Group’s needs
for different types of external financing and will negotiate
for proper facilities and consider proper means of equity
financing as appropriate.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. SRIEREERERBEE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d REELRMRS(E)
At 31 March
=A=+-8

Undiscounted cash flows
repayable on demand

or within one year Carrying amount
AURRERE
RERIN—FR IREE
2012 2011 2012 2011

=F-—=-F T % =B-=F T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 =~ HK$000 HK$'000
BT BBTR O BEFR BB TR

Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMER R 30,473 37,585 30,473 37,585
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 & & T & - 46 - 46
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 16,204 6,730 15,305 6,180

46,677 44,361 45,778 43,811




7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of a
bank borrowing with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the borrowing
agreement. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such bank loan will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the borrowing agreement.
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7. TREAREEBRERBK(E)

(d)

RBESRER ()

TRBRSIP A 78 8 SRR IRV IRTT
fEERIBE R B HEAH 2 e ERERER
1B Z BIBANHT - ZEEALE 2 BB
N BEFANRARITEBITERBEE 2
SKIZBVEE - E2RA - ZRITEREIEZ
SRS R P2 thhEE 5K B HAER -

Maturity analysis - Bank borrowing subject to
a repayment on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HEAH - REHEER AN ER WA ARERERRINGTHE

Morethan ~ More than Total

On demand oneyear  two years okl
or within less than lessthan ~ More than Undiscounted Carrying
oneyear  two years five years five years  cash flows amount

RERY BBE-F HEEWF RERRS

R-FR PREE HSREF BBIF BReRE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BT BB
31 March 2012 “E-—FZA=1-H 1,026 1,026 3,078 574 5,704 5,305
31 March 2011 I = 1,026 1,026 3,078 1,600 6,730 6,180
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. SRRABREEEERBK(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments () &MIEDE
At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
—E-=F —E 5
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets: SREE !
Held-to-maturity investment BEEIHEHEE - 2,000
Loans and receivables (including &k & fEU 5118
bank and cash balances) (BIERITRREHER) 41,950 72,857
41,050 74,857
Financial liabilities: SRIBME:
Financial liabilities at fair AR THER AR
value through profit or loss ZEmas
— Held for trading —FHER S = 46
Financial liabilities at amortised  F2# 4K AR 2
costs TRAEE 43,000 38,443
43,000 38,489
() Fair value n 2DFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and RE SRR RSN RA T8 15 & B A
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement HaEZEEHERESEAFEBRS -

of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a INTHBEUAFEZEAEATE  »

fair value hierarchy which has 3 levels: = EELRSE

Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for HAI1 . RNERMSBR-—MEENXARE
identical assets or liabilities. ZIREERCREARE)

Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included within FRl2: BARTEREBELELAR FHE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or EARMEESABZERE
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (BB ) sk (BMEARITAE)
(i.e. derived from prices). WMBEE -

Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based FAIB . WAREARBEZR RRTS
on observable market data (unobservable B2 EESBRAGGEREEY

inputs). RBIRA) ©
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. SRIEREEBENREE(E)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

() Fair value (Continued) N 2FEGR
At the end of last reporting period, the Group’s derivative RE—ERERR  AEENTESRT
financial instruments of HK$46,000 belonged to level 2 of the BE#46, 0008 TER A FEERNE =
fair value hierarchy. oo
The movement in level 3 fair value measurements of financial RZB——F=A=+—HZFEEHE
assets during the prior year represented the fair value loss EZFE=RRATEHAELEHR/NGESIE
of approximately HK$61,612,000 on the convertible notes MR AR EREK AT EER R
receivables recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for EH4)61,612,00078 7T °

the year ended 31 March 2011.

Included in the consolidated profit or loss is a loss of FAEERTEERBESHRITLESR
HK$829,000 (2011: HK$1,388,000) which relates to the T EM R {E# 8 E 184 829,000% 7T
change in fair value of the derivate financial instruments at the (Z&F——% :1,388,000#7T) °

end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the MARFEE  E-REFE _F2ELEE
year. -
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. HHER
For management purpose, the Group has three operating and REEMS - AEBEBUT=ELERATZ2HD
reportable segments as follows: 76
Packaging products - Manufacture and sale of packaging BRERER - HEMHEEEER
business products.
Digital entertainment - Provision of internet café licenses, BISIRGEETS - IRHEERER - R EEUR
business online game tournament services B RABEIRET &
and online entertainment platforms.
Watch business - Trading of watches RS - EH%RE"
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that REBEZ A 2WHEHIRETRERERSE 2R
offer different products and services. They are managed separately BRERBEAN - WASBEEBRERTREM EH%
because each business requires different technology and marketing HEREMEBEIE - FillpESzBHERZER
strategies. Information regarding the above segments is reported R e

below.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEPER(E)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DHUEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and TRATNEBAZHRS Bz RS REED
results by reportable segment: #r

For the year ended 31 March

BE=A=t-ALEE
Digital entertainment  Packaging products Watch Consolidated
business business business total
HRRLRH AREREH BRER Gamst

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
S8 _T—F| 8- "% ZB-TF _T—F ZB-Tf _T-%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
AETr AhTr AETr  A4fr  A¥Tr  R4fr BETR BETr

TURNOVER: 2R
Revenue from external customers RANBEE G 3,099 1,003 144,911 143,348 351 664 148,361 145,075
RESULTS: ES
Segment profi/oss) AHEH(ER) (3781)  (0208)  (41,161)  (25,44) (345) (10932  (45,287) (126,782)
Interest income IBHA 692 2,779
Change in fair valug of (TEeRIANTE

derivative financial instruments® 228" - (1,389)
Change in fair value of BEYEINTT

investment properties - 14375 36,080
Change in fair value of RREERMG

convertible notes receivables AFEZES - 61619
Exchange gain Bl 1,528 1521
Loss on disposal of derivative WETESRTA

financial instruments* LB (829)  (1,57)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries WERBAR M 389 -

Redlassfication of foreign curency ~ HEMBARAENEE
translation reserve upon disposal  BEZIMNERE R R

of subsidiaries 9,507 -
Impairment of interests in assoclates  INESEARIZER 2 - (12919
Impairment of loans to non- m-EHEARZ

controling shareolders of FERREREL

a subsidiary EFZRE = (2,139
Reversal of impaiment loss Ltz

on other recelvables REEEEE 972 581
Waiver of other payables e AR 954 1,092
Share of resuls of associates PMEBERE EE - (121
Unallocated income FARMA 4943 19,652
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLART (54,997)  (136,022)
Finance costs BBER (408) (989)
Loss before tax BHAER (68,161)  (203,811)
* These items were included in other income or administrative * ZEIEE BREEEMBASITERFAZRA ©

expenses.



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

There are no sales between the reportable segments for both
years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
loss represents the profit or loss of each segment without
allocation of interest income, change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments, change in fair value of
investment properties, change in fair value of convertible note
receivables, exchange gain, loss on disposal of derivative
financial instruments, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries, impairment loss recognised in
respect of other receivables, impairment loss recognised
in respect of investments in associates, impairment
loss recognised in respect of loans to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary, reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of other receivables, waiver of
other payables, share of results of associates, centralised
administrative expenses, Directors’ remunerations, finance
costs and income tax expense. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

PEEEEERRAT

—ER-—E-CEFERS

Year ended 31 March 2012 #&=—ZT——F=A=1+—HILFE

8. ZHPER(E)

(a)

P L eI E S {E )

(BT _FRZF-—FZA=1—
BIERFE - A2 AR mHE

A 2HD AP B ESA M RAM T
AP AR BETBER K - D EbE 1R
REESESzZBE  ENBRA - TES
BMIAXFEZZY REVEATEZ
g  THRREREKARFEZIED -
B WE  HETESRTAZER -
EMBARZKE - HEMBARKRED
BEBERINERE ERE - SRR

R BERE  IRNBE QR 2 ERE
BRMERE - Fhia — [ M8 2~ R FEER

BRI 2 B RER 2 BERE - BLEA
YRR R EE B E - e H bR
N DIEBME AR ZEE - EHTHRE
BRx B  WHERKMEHR
SXATFAR - ERAAEBEEI2EEBRE
ERMEERERD RS SRR 2
HEZE o

67
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DIEFR(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHEERAE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TR ERBERI2HY ATz A EBEE

liabilities by reportable segment: RBIE :
At 31 March
R=A=+-H
Digital entertainment  Packaging products Watch Consolidated
business business business total
BERAEK BEERER BRER Gafy
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“g--f -F-—F ZB-°F -“%——F “B-2f “F—% “B-F -T—F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKSO000  HK$'000  HK$000
BBTT E%Tr  BETn  A¥Tr A¥Tn A%t B¥Tn BT
ASSETS: EE:
Segment assets AHAE 178477 136283 70267 127,793 468 815 249212 264,891
Due from a related party @R - 1,185
Held-to-maturity investment BERIHARA - 2,000
Current tax assets RENELE - 295
Pledged bank deposits BEARAER - 2,428
Bank and cash balances FIIRA L5 19725 36638
Unallocated corporate assets FORGEEE 2,528 8,492
Total assets EE8E 211,465 315929
LIABILITIES: g%
Segment liablties AHEE 4,311 4177 15608 17904 6 1237 19925 23318
Derivative financial instruments ITESRTA - 46
Bank and other borrowings BE 15,305 6,180
Current tax liabilties MEHEERE 395 -
Deferred tax liabilties EEREEE 27,94 14,929
Unallocated corporate liabilties FOMGEEE 10,548 14,267
Total liabilities afEaE 4114 58740
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEPER(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) b) FHBEEREE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERDERRE D BEBERDEME ¢

allocating resources between segments:

-~ all assets are allocated to reportable segments other - MRIEWBEESFIA  BEEEEA
than amount due from a related party, held-to-maturity & RYMBEEE  FEMERTT
investment, current tax assets, pledged bank deposits, BRE RITEBSESR MRS BD
bank and cash balances, unallocated corporate HEEEIN FITEEERAIZ2HRDH
assets; and i &

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other - BOTESRI A RITEREME
than derivative financial investments, bank and other o ORBMIEBEE BELEHIEBAE
borrowings, current tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities ERDPEECEABEIN FIEAER
and unallocated corporate liabilities. A 2MA A

(c) Geographical information (c) HEER

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the RER 7 EBEEME AR B NFPE -

PRC.

The Group’'s revenue from external customers by RIMNPBEEWAZ B E DT Z AEE

geographical location of revenue from external customers is REIINBEL ZWALT -

detailed below:
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DIEFR(E)
(c) Geographical information (Continued) (c) HEER
Turnover by geographical market Bt EHIHE D 2 EERE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
Brazil B 2,635 5,873
Canada IEN 755 1,183
The PRC (excluding HK) AL (BERRIN) 5,199 4,207
England B 13,060 12,436
Germany =k 58,191 48,917
Hong Kong B 23,151 24,667
Italy B 18,270 16,223
Singapore N 3,880 9,365
United States of America ESE 10,905 8,880
Other countries H A= 12,315 13,324
148,361 145,075
Revenue from two (2011: two) customers of the Group’s REASEBEEREBDBZWABR
packaging products business segment contributing AEBBKRAI0%B N EZMEEZR(ZE
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group represents ——F WMH) ZWAD B A 42,601,000
approximately HK$42,601,000 and HK$14,819,000 (2011: 7T 14,819,000 (=& — — F -
HK$30,276,000 and HK$17,617,000) of the Group’s total 30,276,000/8 7T % 17,617,000 7T) °
revenue respectively.
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based B S BRI - WA TYIRE P FTEH 2
on the location of the customers. 7 e

AEBERBESBZIIFRDEE(TRE
ERTRE)FIWT

The Group’s non-current assets, other than financial
instruments, by geographical location are detailed below:

2012 2011

—E-——fF —T——F

HK’000 HK’000

BT T BT T

The PRC (excluding HK) R (BBBRIN) 185,038 140,118
Hong Kong B 26,462 70,140
211,500 210,258
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEPER(E)
(d) Other segment information (d) HfbppER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HESIAEXE B D B ERET AR
segment assets: B

For the year ended 31 March

BE=R=t-AL%E
Digital entertainment  Packaging products Watch Consolidated
business business business Unallocated total
HERAER AEERER ERER L) Gaft

012 201 02 201 012 201 2012 20 012 201
“%-"f "I %-°F "% Z%-°f 5% %-2F “F--F Z%-2F 5%
HK$'000 HKS000  HKS000 HK$000  HK$000 HKS000 HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000
ABTn AETr BETn AT AT AT AMTn ERTr BETn TR

Addition to non-current assets TEHRDAE % 11334 310 3313 - - 587 - 3888 147
Amortisation of intangble assets BV AEHH 7205 - - - - - - 7205
Depreciation of property, plant nE - EER

and equipment GEnE 75 4903 2494 2879 - - 30 3445 3589 11207
Impairment of goodiwil HEZIE - - 40798 45349 - - - - 40798 45349
Impaiment of intangible assets BVEEZNE - 18063 - - - - - - - 18083
Impairment of inventories HEWE - 467 256 - - 8% - - 2% 9262
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,  HEHE » BERAfE

plant and equipment LB/ (h%) - (18275 37 673) - - 521 - 558 (18,949)
Property, plant and equipment 0% BER

written off RiEHH 134 6,223 - 89 - - 3,077 3908 3211 10,220

Inventories written off ek - - - 119 - - - - - 119
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9. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME

Turnover represents net amounts received and receivable for
services provided and goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discounts and sales related taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:

ERBEREAYA

ERBEEAREDREEME TINEER 2 RF R
EanZ BN EWGRIEFEE - BRI M HE

SR ©

REBZAFREEEXBEINWT

2012 2011
—E-=F —E 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BB TFT
Turnover: =
Manufacture and sale of RS RIHE
packaging products BEEM 144,911 143,348
Digital entertainment business EH IR 2T 3,099 1,063
Trading of watches EERE S 351 664
148,361 145,075
Other income: HibW A -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BB K
plant and equipment 2 Was - 18,948
Interest income FLEMA 692 2,779
Reversal of impairment loss H ARG 2
on other receivables VEREN 5=t E 972 581
Rental income (note) itk N EED) 8,819 6,252
Sundry income FEIEWA 5,045 705
Waiver of other payables A E M BN 954 1,092
16,482 30,357
2012 2011
—EB-=F —E 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT T
Note to rental income: AW AT EE -
Gross rental income el @58 8,819 6,252
Less: outgoings B X (1,289) 831)
Net rental income A WA FEE 7,530 5,421
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB ER
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Interest expenses on borrowings wholly — ZBRAFREEHEE
repayable within five years: ZEEZFERAX
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE 151 924
— Other borrowing —HAEK 257 -
- Finance lease payables — BB RN IR - 65
408 989
11. INCOME TAX 11. Fi88t
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BBENEH
— current N 635 714
— over-provision — REER R (69) (246)
566 468
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current HR TS — 2N B 152 6
Deferred tax (note 27) BRIERIA (PFE27) 5,907 10,075
6,625 10,549
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated HEZZT——FEk-FT——F=A=+—HLHF
assessable profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. Tax & - BANGBIIREFHERBUEF 2 16.5% 51
arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in o REMBEERES ZBIEIRE B RERE
the respective jurisdictions. Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise B2 RITHEANE - REBFBECEMETE( 1
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the ¥EFTERUED) RIEEMEBUEEMIEN - ANAF]
EIT Law, the tax rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is URFEZB AR 2 HERZMEFEER

25% for both years. 25% °
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. B (&)

REFEFSTHERTATEIERATBNEREZ

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and the loss

before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as follows:

FREZHIRNT

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss before tax: BREiAIEE (66,801) (293,811)
Tax at the domestic income tax BAMATEHEE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (ZF——%F 1 16.5%) (11,246) (48,479)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R Efth B EAE R AR &
operating in other jurisdictions 2B RARHEIR 22 1,261 (3,875)
Over-provision of tax in prior years AT B PRSI iBRE B (69) (246)
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG g2 (5,948) (6,158)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR S 2 B SR 2 22,569 62,737
Tax effect of taxes losses not REERIEEE
recognised 2B 58 6,570
Tax at the Group’s effective rate BRASEERREAE 2PIE 6,625 10,549
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. XFEEEE

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):

AEEAFEBEDHR, (EE) TEE :

2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 109,037 89,793
Inventories written off TFEMEE (Gt ASEERA)
(included in cost of sales) - 119
Depreciation of property, Y% - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 3,589 11,227
Amortisation of intangible assets | EERE 7 2,025
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - HEKEE
plant and equipment 2 E1E,/ (e 558 (18,948)
Loss on disposal of derivative HETEeRTA
financial instruments 2B 829 1,557
Property, plant and equipment YIE - BRE R A
written off 3,211 10,220
Operating lease rentals in respect THREFIELEHERS
of land and buildings 6,491 9,545
Auditors’ remuneration 22 R BN 785 1,013
Staff costs (including Directors’ BIKA
remuneration — note 13): (BIEESME —KIE13) -
Salaries, allowances and other e R LEMEYET
benefits in kind 35,268 69,846
Equity-settled share-based payment — DAREZS S2 5 2 B (n E A 451+ - 134
Pension scheme contributions RRIEFFT B3R 2,168 1,634
Total staff costs 8T A A% 37,436 71,614
Provision against various assets: HEEEERBRE
Impairment of intangible assets BEEERE - 18,063
Impairment of interests in associates B2 A ) 2 Ezs 2 JBE - 12,915
Impairment of inventories FERE 256 9,262
Impairment of other receivables, HAb pEMGRIE -
deposits and prepayments e RTENRIERE - 51,677
Impairment of deposit paid WHEMZE  BRE K&
for acquisition of property, FrftiE< 2 RE
plant and equipment - 24,612
Impairment of loans to non-controlling  Ff/& A A1 32 AL R
shareholders of a subsidiary BEURE - 2,133
Total impairment of various assets BHEEEZRERE 256 118,662
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EER AN RSHFEE &M
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Executive directors:
Mr. Tang Ming
Mr. Sneah Kar Loon
Dato Lim Kim Wah (also known
as Dato Lim Sze Guan)
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Ng Kwok Lun
Mr. Woelm Samuel
Mr. lo Rudy Cheok Kei

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lai Hock Meng
Mr. Law Chiu William
Dato Myhre Carl Gunnar
Mr. Balakrishnan Narayanan
Mr. Yong Peng Tak
Mr. lo Rudy Cheok Kei

(a) ESBEEA

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE2-Z-—F=fA=t-ALFE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions Total
Fees H&  EHR RIKEF emoluments
weE  HAEN  GrEfR FMEE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
s BT A%tz BT BE¥Tn

HTES:
EBLE (iif - 78 - 78
BRMIEE v) - 2,486 - 2,486
Lim Kim Wah 8
(314 Lim Sze Guan28) (v - 832 - 832
Eoksh A (vi) - 987 6 993
FUTES !
RERBRLE v) 118 50 - 168
Woelm Samuel %4 (i) 27 662 4 693
hEEEE (vii) 84 - - 84
BYFHTES:
TRERLE v) 168 - - 168
BHlrAE (ix) 108 - - 108
Myhre Carl Gunnar £ (vi) 60 - - 60
Balakrishnan Narayanan £ 4 (v) 168 - - 168
BYERE ) 118 - - 118
e ELE (viii) 84 - - 84

935 5,095 10 6,040
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13. EERANESHES 2 H M
(&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

EEHM (&R

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-T——§=-A=T—HIFE

Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions Total
Fees ¥r&  ZR R B&IKEF  emoluments
ik HewigAl FEIfR HWEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
firsx BB BB BB BT
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Cheng A 0] 400 1,300 12 1,712
Mr. Woelm Samuel Woelm Samuel %4 (i) - 1,526 12 1,538
Mr. Wu Chuang John (“Mr. Wu”) RtFE(REE]) (i) 360 400 7 767
Mr. Cao Dongxin ERITLE (i) 400 - - 400
Mr. Ho Chi Chung Joseph fEREE (iif 274 2,000 12 2,286
Mr. Hu Xichang HHELAE (i) 200 - - 200
Mr. Yu Ping BEraE (iif 200 - - 200
Mr. Zhang Yiwei RRELE (i) 200 - - 200
Mr. Tang Ming EREE (i) 274 653 - 927
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. lo Rudy Check Kei HhERLE (vii) - - - -
Mr. Ng Kwok Lun REfmEAE () - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BV FHTES :
Mr. Wang Shanchuan Fuilsks (i) 400 - - 400
Mr. Ng Pui Lung REBERE (i) 274 - - 274
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene BEERAE (iv) 232 - - 232
Mr. Lai Hock Meng REHLE () - - - -
Mr. Law Chiu William BEBEE (ix) - - - -
Dato Myhre Carl Gunnar Myhre Carl Gunnar &% (vi) - - - -
Mr. Balakrishnan Narayanan Balakrishnan Narayanan £4£  (v) - - - -
Mr. Yong Peng Tak BEELE (v) - - - -
3,214 5,879 43 9,136
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

(vil)

(viii

()

Suspended authorities and duties as a director and all other
position in the Group with effect from 8 April 2011 and re-election
as a director voted down on 6 October 2011

Re-designated from executive director to non-executive director
on 15 July 2011 and did not offer himself for re-election as a
director on 6 October 2011

Re-election as a director voted down on 6 April 2011

Did not offer himself for re-election as a director on 6 April 2011

Appointed as a director on 6 April 2011

Appointed as a director on 6 April 2011 and did not offer himself for
re-election as a director on 6 October 2011

Appointed as a director on 6 October 2011

Appointed as a director on 6 April 2011 and re-designated from
non-executive director to independent non-executive director on 6
October 2011

Appointed as a director on 6 April 2011 and resigned on 1 March
2012

Senior management’s emoluments

Three (2011: three) of the five highest paid individuals of the
Group were Directors whose emoluments are set out in the
above. For the year ended 31 March 2012, the remaining
two (2011: two) senior management’s emoluments of the

1. EERAUREHEEZHMH

(%)

(a)

(b)

EEHME)

HZE

() BT ——FMANRAREEEREAEE
ERRFTEE M 2 BRI E SR
REEN-T——FT+AXNBEER

(ii) RZT——FtA+THABEWTEEFAML
BIFATEERN_T——FTARBT
BREERES

(i) REE——FHANAREGRAEERARES

vy RZTE——FMAHBTESERETH
=

v) R-T——FMANBEZTAES

v REZE——FHASNBEZAAESELR
—E——E+ANENERETAES

Vi) R-T——F+ANBEZTAESE

(i) RZZT——FHASNBEZFAESELR
—E——F+ANBHEIEMTIESHATA
BUERITES

(x) RZE——FEOANBEZFAESELR
—T—-FZA—ABT

SREEEHS

REBAERESFNALBE=2(-%
—— & =F)EE  HBeFERIIR L
X ARREHEE-_ZT——F£=ZA=+—H
IFEEHMA(ZT—F WA 5l

Company were as follows: BREBZHMENT :
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Salaries, allowances and e R R

other benefits in kind EmEYEF 2,675 6,378
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ iEKE 5T 21t 5% 15 48
2,690 6,426




13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Senior management’s emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

PEEEEERRAT

—ERE-—E-CEFERS
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1. EERAUREHEEZHMH

(%)

(b)

BREEEFE (&)
MRATAER 2 B -

Number of employees

EEHE

2012 2011

—E-=F —E——F

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& T2 1,500,000 7T 1 -

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /%872 2,000,000 7 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7tZ 2,500,000 7 7T - 1

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 77T Z 5,000,000 7 7T - 1

2 2
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the Directors (c) 2= —FrR-T——F=fF=+—
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or HIEMEFER  ANEBEHEREZESSKA
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office LRETMATZNERMNE  (ERES
during the two years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. DB 7R SR [ S N BR By 2 #R - Sl R R BT

ZfR1E o
14. BE

14. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
each of the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$73,521,000 (2011: HK$302,972,000) and the weighted
average number of 6,968,711,000 (2011: 6,968,711,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share is presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.

REE-Z——FR-_F——-F=A=1+—81t
FEEF EFVEERRMEMRS °

15. BREE

(a)

(b)

BREFER

BREAEBRBERAREE ARML
&5 18 973,521,000 ;t( = F — — F -
302,972,000/ 7C) * U RFADBEITE
B2 N 5206,968,711,000 % (= F
——%:6,968,711,000 i)zt & -

BREEER

RZMEE  UERTEETEEEL R
B B2 GRREEEEE

79




80 C Y Foundation Group Limited Annual Report 2011/12

Year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—T——F=A=1+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REYE

2012 2011
—E-CF —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At beginning of the reporting period AR EHIH 110,937 62,876
Exchange realignment Rk 4,558 3,153
Transferred from property, plant ER A - S REE (7))
and equipment (note 17) 19,926 5,465
Revaluation surplus at the date REREHBEEEERAME
transferred from own-occupied EEXZEHER
properties 25,956 3,363
Change in fair value NFEZ ZE) 14,375 36,080
At 31 March R=ZA=+—0 175,752 110,937
(@) Al of the Group’s investment properties are held to earn @ AKEREURDESISRKERLEZ
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes and are measured FraRakEm AR TEERGE -
using the fair value model.
(o)  The investment properties shown above consist of medium- () LEXATREEMERERFRzFHEE
term lease land and buildings held in the PRC. T RAETF o
(¢)  The fair values of the Group’s investment properties located ) AEBERFEZEEWEQFETRE
in the PRC were valued by Ascent Partners Transaction HAEETEBEZBYUAERTER
Service Limited (“Ascent Partners”) at 31 March 2012 and {& Al Ascent Partners Transaction Service
2011, an independent qualified professional valuer not Limited ([Ascent Partners]) ? =& — =
connected with the Group. The valuer has appropriate FZA=+—RAR-E——F=/=+—
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of BT 2 GERD - EMAGEMSS
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations 2B WHEAEEEEER RN
have been arrived at with reference to market evidence of REFEUMEETHELRELR - &8
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations BIFR(HE2EQ 2 (B ED2E R AR E &
and conditions. R T 2 PR B ER 2 TG RES
4o
(d)  On 26 January 2011, subject to an interim injunction order @ R-Z——F—A=-+8 ZRREE

(“Interim Injunction Order”) granted by the High Court of Hong
Kong (“High Court”) to Luck Continent against the Company,
the Interim Injunction Order provides, among other things,
until further order, Mr Cheng and the Company, whether by
himself or itself (as the case may be), its agents, servants or
otherwise howsoever, be restrained from procuring or taking
any steps to procure Beijing T-Matrix Culture Company
Limited (“T-Matrix”), a limited liability company incorporated
in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
to dispose, assign, charge or otherwise deal with the
Group’s investment properties holding by T-Matrix with the
carrying amounts of approximately HK$175,752,000 (2011:
HK$110,937,000) at the end of the reporting period.

BEFER ([ mEER Dt imM R AR A /M
B 2 R RIS ([FRRS RIS ) - BRRS
BHISHRE - EReE  BRE#E—HE
LN BREERARR] - B AL ES
AARIBHFGEBRME) ERE - 2R
AT E At A £ - BRHIR 5 s R BT fA
SERERFELRTZEBREVEERAR(E
EEE]) (—KRPBREFMK L2 BRE
ERF TAARFz2EWBEAR)H
&g RS E U A T IR AR
B REMERTEREEG 2R REH
REETEEL A 175,752,000 7T R ZH T
(ZZF——4% : 110,937,000 L) °
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y03 - HBRZE
Group
£
Gaming
Leasehold Leasehold Furniture Plant machines
land and improve- and Office and and

buildings ments fixtures equipment machinery  systems Motor Total
HE HEME HEAR  BAE BEKR O BEEE  vehicles

T REF 1 ®E B4 xE  RE& AE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000

BT BMTrn BYTn BTr B¥Tn BETr B¥Tn BETR

COST: P
At 1 April 2010 RZE-ZENF—H 95,395 10,728 1,901 12,475 3,158 7,794 6,579 138,030
Exchange realignment B H AR 908 264 52 697 172 305 264 2,662
Additions NE 7,204 1,150 75 2,444 887 967 1,454 14,181
Transferred to investment properties ~ EEZRENE (5,844) - - - - - - (5849
Reclassification EEibr - - - 1,050 - (1,050 - -
Disposals HE (61,404)  (1,165) (34) (58) - - (2262 (64,929
Written off during the year REEHE - (4,061) (334) (5,724) (1,119 (8,016) (2,828) (22,082
At 31 March 2011 RZZ——%F
=A=+-A 36,259 6,916 1,660 10,884 3,098 - 3,207 62,024
Exchange realignment B H AR 569 3 - 378 25 - 172 1,147
Additions NE - 1,906 307 542 1,031 - 67 3,853
Transferred to investment properties ~ EEZRE Y% (22,128) - - - - - - (22,128
Disposals HE - (3,692) (365) (155) (325) - - (4,537)
Written off during the year RERHH - - 97)  (7,443) - - ©51)  (8,491)
At 31 March 2012 NZT-ZTF
=A=1—-H 14,700 5,133 1,505 4,206 3,829 - 2,495 31,868
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: 2EhE
At 1 April 2010 RZE-2EMA[—H 3,560 6,144 735 5,466 1,244 3,218 2,873 23,240
Exchange realignment B H A% 52 171 29 408 57 158 118 993
Provided during the year KERRE 1,794 2,584 471 2,759 749 1,617 1,253 11,227
Transferred to investment properties ~ EEZERENE (379) - - - - - - (379)
Reclassffication Exib - - - 580 - (580) - -
Eliminated on disposals e (1,859) (992) (28) (31) - - (1,342 (4,252
Eliminated on written off =l - (259%) (250)  (2444) (1,058 (4413 (1,102) (11,862
At 31 March 2011 RZZ—F
ZRA=1+-H 3,168 5,312 957 6,738 992 - 1,800 18,967
Exchange realignment B H A% 53 1 - 244 7 - 155 460
Provided during the year REERE 539 851 312 703 801 - 383 3,589
Transferred to investment properties ~ EEZERENE (2,202) - - - - - - (2202
Eliminated on disposals e R - (3,262 (233) (154) (289) = - (393
Eliminated on written off TR - - (39)  (4,588) - - (653)  (5,280)
At 31 March 2012 R-Z——F
=A=+-A 1,558 2,902 997 2,943 1,511 - 1,685 11,596
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FHE:
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F
=A=1—-H 13,142 2,231 508 1,263 2,318 - 810 20,272
At 31 March 2011 RZZ—F

“A=1-H 33,001 1,604 703 4,146 2,106 - 1,407 43,067
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(@  Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings were held under the following lease terms:

17. Y% - HBERKRE(E)

(@ REEHR AREZHEELHRETHE
B TIRIEA T RFFER

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT T
Held under medium term leases in:  #RiEFHEIFALEA -
- Hong Kong — &% 13,142 13,528
— the PRC (excluding HK) — B (EBRRIN) - 19,563
13,142 33,001

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$13,142,000 (2011: HK$13,528,000) were pledged to
secure for banking facilities granted to the Group.

(¢)  On 26 January 2011, subject to an interim injunction order
(“Interim Injunction Order”) granted by the High Court to
Luck Continent against the Company, the Interim Injunction
Order provides, among other things, until further order, Mr.
Cheng and the Company, whether by himself or itself (as the
case may be), its agents, servants or otherwise howsoever,
be restrained from procuring or taking any steps to procure
T-Matrix to dispose, assign, charge or otherwise deal with the
Group’s leasehold lands and buildings holding by T-Matrix
with the carrying amounts of approximately HK$19,563,000
at the end of last reporting period.

(d)  During the year ended 31 March 2012, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipments of
approximately HK$3,211,000 (2011: HK$10,220,000) were
written off, which was mainly arising from the cessation of
the Group’s business in the online game tournament services
and online entertainment platforms.

) RMEBAR AEEBEEEFEOR
13,142,000 7c( =& ——% : 13,528,000
B HETHEREFEERM - UER
EEAERTIRITEE -

€ R-ZE—F—A-t+ B ZEAEZH
ERBERMNERA A R M3 B2 H <
(TERRFZERIS ) « BRREFISMETE - Hep
B BREBE—PESIN KEERK
NE ERABEEIANGEH(RIB
RmE)  HRIE - ZEASEMEAMA
+ - BREMEE S RBER S BRETER
P s~ BBk R E UM A R
TEREREAEEZEE T RIEFR
7B HA R BR T B 4 419,563,000 78
e

) #HEZZ——FZA=t+—HIEFE &«
EEIRMmMEL3,211,0008 T( =& ——
£ 110,220,000/ 7T ) B - 138 MR
B - EB AR KIEARE BRI
AR R MR IR AT B FTEK ©
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE

License Software Total

28R g4 @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BETT

COST: B

At 1 April 2010 RZZE-TFNA—H 30,397 6,210 36,607
Exchange realignment B Ji AR 1,337 130 1,467
Additions during the year RERKE - 466 466
At 31 March 2011 RZZ——5=A=+—H 31,734 6,806 38,540
Exchange realignment RIS 1,170 122 1,294
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR - (3,488) (3,488)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-ZF=A=+—H 32,904 3,440 36,344

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION RIEEBELRE
AND IMPAIRMENT:

At 1 April 2010 R-B-TFA—H 15,616 1,411 17,027
Exchange realignment B S AR 1,005 87 1,002
Provided for the year AFERE 621 1,404 2,025
Impairment loss REBE 14,159 3,904 18,063
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——4$=A=+—H 31,401 6,806 38,207
Exchange realignment P 5 AR 1,158 122 1,280
Provided for the year AEZRE 7 - 7
Elimination on disposal of HERBRRME

a subsidiary - (3,488) (3,488)
At 31 March 2012 WZE—_F=A=1—H 32,566 3,440 36,006

CARRYING AMOUNTS: A :

At 31 March 2012 RZZE-—4$=A=+—H 338 - 338

At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=ZA=+—H 333 - 333
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

License

License has definite useful life and is amortised on a straight-
line basis over 50 years.

The Group’s intangible assets in license arose from the
digital entertainment business. At 31 March 2011, the
management reviewed the recoverable amount of the license
with reference to the valuation issued by an independent
professional valuer not connected with the Group. After
due assessment of the recoverable amount of the license,
an impairment loss of approximately HK$14,159,000 was
recognised in consolidated profit or loss in last reporting
period.

The recoverable amount of the license is determined from
the discounted cash flow value-in-use approach. The Group
prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
budgets approved by management and extrapolated over
five years. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
forecast were those regarding discount rates and anticipated
future sales, as follows:

- Projected cash flow is based on sales plans derived
from the digital entertainment business plans.

- Management used a discount rate which is derived
as the Company’s cost of capital, representing the
expected return on the Company’s capital, and
assigned a discount rate of 17.84%.

Software

The Group’s intangible assets in software arose from the
online game tournament services and online entertainment
platforms. For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Directors
considered the Group’s software with the carrying amounts
of approximately HK$3,904,000 were impaired, as the Group
ceased to develop the related business. The impaired loss
was recognised in the period in which it arised to the extent
that the carrying amount exceeded its recoverable amount
on the basis of the respective estimated fair value less cost
to sell. The resultant impairment loss of HK$3,904,000 was
recognised and charged to the consolidated profit or loss
during last reporting period.

8. ELEE (&)

(a)

(b)

EER

MBIREERAIERFH - WILE0FIABELR
ETUAMES -

AEBZIEREVEETBBTFRERT
EE-R-T——F=A=+—H B
12 BN £2 (B 30 488 R i 7 Y 7 H AL (E A

FIB 2 (S - iR TRE
o BRI 2 7 £ B A AT

% E—EsREHERGAEZ
{EE51E 47 14,159,000/8 7T °

WEED/L‘/W

IRz IOl S RIRR AR REERE
BEETE - ARBRRIHKEEEARR
EZHRE BRAFHRRHEASRER
Ao BEREREL TERRAAHAIR
RRFBRRKEESE - &0 -

- HRE2REBADERETFR
FrEIELEZHERE -

5T

— ERABFANEXRRARQRZ
BARAEE  IARREARZTE
HAEI3R e E AR IR R 17.84% ©

LSS

AEBZ BB EETBBGERRY
RHBRETRELE - R B——F=A
=t—BULFE EF2R5 AEEEH
{E49753,904,0008 THE 2 RE - B
RAEEDIFIEERBERAEER - WREE

HiBEE At 2 A EBHER AT
oA El e - RIBERENE MM

mﬁﬁ P E—EREHEREE BT
SRHEFERE 518 3,904,000 8 7T °
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For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill set out above has been allocated to the Group’s cash
generating unit (“CGU”) of manufacture and sale of packaging
products business.

The Directors are of the opinion that, based on the business
valuation report of the manufacture and sale of packaging products
segment as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 issued by Ascent
Partners, an independent valuer not connected with the Group,
after due assessment of the recoverable amount of the goodwiill,
an impairment loss of approximately HK$40,793,000 (2011:
HK$45,349,000) was recognised in consolidated profit or loss for
the year.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is determined
from the income-based approach calculation as extracted from
Ascent Partners’s valuation report for the recoverable amount as at
31 March 2012.

19. GOODWILL 19. HE

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

COST: B -
At beginning of the reporting period RS A 107,416 107,165
Exchange realignment B 3, 220 251
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMBAR (169) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 107,467 107,416

IMPAIRMENTS: A
At beginning of the reporting period RS B 51,485 5,885
Exchange realignment B 5, 220 251
Impairment loss BEEE 40,793 45,349
Elimination on disposal of a subsidiary HEHTE A B (169) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 92,329 51,485

CARRYING AMOUNT: BREVFE

At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 15,138 55,931

RERNETS » SR EXZEEREED D
EAEEENHERREREK REELSE

fir e

EERA REEANEEERE 2B IHERM
Ascent Partners R —Z2——F=A=+—HK&—
T——F =A==+ HEHRENEEREER
DEAEGERS  LRBETEEEZ TR
Bl¢3E% - AEEDREESBRENERRERE
4940,793,000 8 7L( == ——4F : 45,349,000/8
TT) e

IR & BEENE L 2 0] YR [B & 5B JY F 8% Ascent
Partners 2 [HERENR —_E——F=A=+—H
2B EEAIR e EEST X EER]
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19.

20.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The management of the Group prepared a profit forecast and
cash flow forecast in respect of this CGU (the “Forecasts”). The
Forecasts were based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a period of five years at a discount rate
15.3% (2011: 17.5%). The cash flows for the next five years were
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2% (2012: 2%). The
growth rate was based on the relevant industry growth rate forecast
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The Forecasts for the budgeted period was based
on the budgeted sales and budgeted gross margins during the
budget period. Budgeted gross margins were determined based
on management’s expectation for market development and past
experience, and the management believes that the budgeted
gross margins were reasonable. Based on the Forecasts, the
Directors were of the opinion, that the carrying amount of goodwill
for packaging product business exceeds its recoverable amount
and an impairment loss of approximately HK$40,793,000 (2011:
HK$45,349,000) was made for the year.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19.

e ()

AEEEEESEAR S EMREEFITRR RIR
SRETERI(ZIEA]) - IR ERERE R
B & AFHMBERE MR E15.3% (=%
——F :175%) Mzt E - RRAFZRERE
DIEBTEERER2%(ZT——%F : 2%)EHH#
T o MRETEMIEBAITEEREN BTE
BHABITE s FHRBEER - BEHM 2%
FERDIREEEESERBHEEMNMEL - EEE
FIDERBEREEMSERE 2B RBTERM
BE EREENEBEENBEE - ERNi%E
Al BEBERE HEREMEB HE KRB
MBHEESRE - WRAFEELREREL
40,793,000/ T ( —=F ——%:45,349,000/87T) °

20 IHHECETREERBE QT

e

Available-for-sale

financial assets

Interests in associates

AHEZSMEE BENTER
2012 2012 2011
—E--F St 3 -
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT
Unlisted Investment, at cost: FELMIRE - BAA
At beginning of the reporting period AR BT - 29,000 29,000
Reclassification — note BN 29,000 (29,000) -
At 31 March R=A=t+—H 29,000 - 29,000
Accumulated impairments: 2ERE
At beginning of the reporting period RIS BT - 29,000 29,000
Reclassification - note BHHE M 29,000 (29,000) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 29,000 - 29,000
Carrying amount: BREHE
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H - - -
Note: Due to dilution of the Group’s equity interest in the investees and the MGt © AR ERWIE 7m0 IR b s AR E 7 R

Group’s limited and passive involvement in the operation of the investees,
the Group is unable to exercise significant influence over the investees and
the investments are reclassified as available-for-sale financial assets during

the year.

BRRNZEE - HAKERGEHRIRETTENE
A& AUERNAFESHREEDEATHIME
BIARE -
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

20. AItHEZEREERKE QA
= (&)

RAFHEHR - AEEZ A ERERAER]
HREREHRE - ERENREEATRZAF
BEREIRETNEREM S LN THEE - tF
ARG R T RENRERTEERIRIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the basis of a
material decline in their fair value below cost and adverse changes in the
market in which these investees operated which indicated that the cost of
the Group’s investment may not be recovered.

21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLES AT 21, ZBBHEEAFEIRZTREKR

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ZiE TR
Convertible note receivables designated as financial assets at fair EEABBEBREATEYEZEMEE AR
value through profit or loss consisted of: &R EWRBIE
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 Note 4
g I EIE:Y: g3
ELE 8 RiE2 FiE3 ES ¥
Date of issue: 30 April 2009 30 April 2009 6 May 2008 3 December 2008
BEITHES ZEENF ZEENF —ETNF —ETNF
WMA=+AH MA=+AH hARH +=—A=H
Coupon rate: 5% per annum 5% per annum 8% per annum Nil
REE TFES% BE5% 5F8% i
Maturity date: 29 April 2012 29 April 2012 5May 2011 2 December 2010
==k T T —T——% —T-TF
MmA=+hAH mA=+AhH AARA +=-A=H
Principal amount: US$2,000,000 US$2,500,000 US$1,000,000 HK$12,000,000
g 2,000,000 2,500,000 1,000,000 % 7T 12,000,000 77T
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21.

22.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLES AT 21, EBRBBRAFEIRZTERR
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS L L L ENE )
(CONTINUED)
Upon expiry of the indicated maturity dates of all the above HE LA RERER(TERE]DBERE
Convertible Notes (the “all those Notes”) before and after the end HH - 2RI ImEHR 2 RIE - FTE R ES
of the reporting period, all those Notes were neither converted by AREFEHR - MERETARERBHZANZE
the Group nor redeemed by the issuers in accordance with the BZEEmEER - Boh - FTERIE 2 BT AL HEEG
respective arrangement in the subscription agreements. It is also BEMBERE  HERBERZ AT EREE
identified that the issuers of all those Notes have been in significant A AERE BRIEFE 7T —BRRERE A
financial difficulties, and consequently causing the breaches of BEAE ZELSKIER - KREBREAMEZRE
prescribed terms of the subscription agreements, such as a default BEEIAEE RS E BRE -
or delinquency in interest or principal payments for a period of time
up to the date of this report. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over all those Notes.
Following the contractual defaults by all those Notes issuers before WBEFRMEZENARGIEER - DRINHER
and after the end of the reporting period, the Company and its BISkiE - ARR RERFEEBENFARRR T4
subsidiaries, being the holders of all those Notes, have taken B8 MEEBTAMEERABRAS A
corresponding legal actions to claim against the underlying note BIEE  FIE  KANEMEBER -
issuers and the guarantors as defendants for the principal amounts,
the related damages, interest, further relief and costs.
Having regard to the ongoing assessments of all the relevant RE L BRI AL KRR 2R
circumstances and the unpredictability of future cash inflows, the REBZEEZV AR AL O ZEMENaLE
Directors considered that the Group is unlikely to recover any TR WREBIAEZE(RARSE XA —(E
amounts from all those Notes and it is more appropriate to record HERHNAFERET B ITHRAME -
all those Notes at their estimated fair values of HK$nil at the end of
the both reporting periods.
INVENTORIES 22, 7
2012 2011
—E-C-fF —ZT——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BB TFT
Raw materials JRE 8,203 10,240
Work-in-progress R 2,911 12,778
Finished goods BURN G 2,547 6,778
13,661 29,796
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ RHEMEW
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Trade receivables e E 5 8R1E 19,981 22,772
Other receivables H G 6,356 13,074
Less: Impairment loss B ORERE (4,112) (12,223)
2,244 851
Deposits and prepayments e RIARRK 14,543 21,578
Deposits paid for game software TR R R R IR
development and licenses PASENE -« 30,000 30,000
44,543 51,578
Less: Impairment loss B ORERE (40,189) (41,872)
4,354 9,706
26,579 33,329
(a)  The Group grants a credit period normally ranging from cash @ AEB—RETHEZETPNTMNERR
on delivery to 90 days to its trade customers. For those FO0HZEEH - stEARNEEE T R 1T
customers who have established good relationships with the BZZERME  EE8aEE120H -

Group, the credit period may be extended to 120 days.

() At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of the b) P|MEHKR BEEZAHHEKESE

trade receivables, based on invoice date, is as follows: EVEE Z BREE D ATIOT ¢

2012 2011

—E—CF T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 60 days 60 HIA 7,259 15,081

61-90 days 61290H 1,789 2,750

91-180 days 91£E180H 5,701 4,406

181-365 days 1812365 H 5,232 496

Over 365 days 365 HIA - 39

19,981 22,772
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

()

At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

23. EZ RHEMEBYK(E)

Rs 0% - BRMERREL KT
EH R AT

2012 2011

—E-—fF —E—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Neither past due nor impaired BRI A R4 i (B 8,211 15,796
Less than 60 days past due BEI60 B 2 A 2,299 3,705
61 to 90 days past due #HI61 HE=90H 2,548 1,895
91 to 180 days past due #mHEI91 HE180H 4,673 1,338
Over 180 days past due wHI180 HIA L 2,250 38
19,981 22,772

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers who have no recent
history of default. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

BEE B HI TN R E < FR Y 5 IR 508 Rl
Y BBORBEZZUES - AEELE
Shax EREERT A I AEEm o

B e B R R (B 2 B B RR U8 I B
AEBEAARFEBLHBZIZMUBILE
P ERBELR  BEERA  BAR
FZERBHRELRERE - IR EEE
EYEEAEFHARSHRIDPR ST 2R
Yl o ARG B3 4 % S A RS B (AR
#ah o
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ R EHMEWR(E)

(Continued)
(d)  The movements in impairment losses of other receivables, @) EmEKR - e REMRZRESEZ
deposits and prepayments are as follows: BT :
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At beginning of the
reporting period RERE B 54,095 23,352
Exchange realignment b 4 B 1,183 882
Elimination on disposal of HE T B A RIHiE
subsidiaries (10,005) -
Written off against other il 5 EL At MR
receivables - (21,235)
Provided during the year FREHE - 51,677
Reversal during the year F N (972) (581)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 44,301 54,095

Included in the impairment loss of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments are individually impaired other receivables
and deposits with an aggregate balance of approximately
HK$44,301,000 (2011: HK$54,095,000) which are due to
long outstanding and/or default of payment. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. Impaired
amounts were directly written off against deposits and
receivables when there was no expectation of recovering any

SPAEMERE - EHE RBARZRES
BEEABIEL A 44,301,0008T(=F
——4 : 54,095,000/ 7T ) 2 AR R E&
Welal Kz sk HE R 2 B (B E Ath FE U R K2 12
& o NEBWERZSEHRITH EEF
i o & BRI TR SR IE RS - BRER
BEENZS KRG

amount.
(e)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other ) AEBZEZNEMEBEURRZEMEAT

receivables are denominated in the following currencies: Bl EHEEHE -
2012 2011
—E-C—fF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
EUR BT 15,829 15,344
RMB AR 1,863 1,849
Uss ET 1,427 3,629
GBP g 4,755 934
HK$ BT 2,705 11,573
26,579 33,329
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24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
AND CASH BALANCES

24. HWBTERRBITRAEER

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——%F

HK$’°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Pledged bank deposits (note) PARIRT TR (M) - 2,428
Bank and cash balances IRITMIR S 5% 19,725 36,638
19,725 39,066

Note: These bank deposits were pledged to secure for the banking
facilities granted to the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash balances
comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity period of three months or less. Bank
balance and pledged deposits carried interest at market rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.78% per annum (2011: 0.01% to 0.78%
per annum).

At the end of the reporting period, the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$7,032,000
(2011: HK$6,338,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged bank deposits
and bank and cash balances are denominated in the following

"
=
4

C RERTEFERERTAEE ZRTT
BEZ M -

RIEHR - ROT MBS EBRBEASEFFZ
BeMRBEIHEA=MARNAT ZEHET
BT o SBITHRB R FERIZEF0.01% 5
0.78% (ZE——F : HF0.01% £0.78%) 2™
SR B 7 IEIRFR o

RI|EMR - ARBUAARBEEEZRITERS
##4/7,032,0008 7T (=T ——4 : 6,338,000
ABTT) o AR LI BSNEAE T RSNEEE
R A5 - B EE RASEEIRMRE ©

REEZ EIPRITFRRRITRRSEHZRE
BN THIEEE :

currencies:
2012 2011
—E—C—F —ZT——14F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT T
HK$ BT 5,734 26,035
RMB AR 7,032 6,338
AUD SR - 2,433
Uss$ =TT 3,482 612
EUR BT 3,214 3,333
Others Hitb 263 315
19,725 39,066
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 B REMENR

2012 2011

—E-=F —T——%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Trade payables JEE SIRIE 2,995 9,493
Accrued expenses and other payables JERTE A R EMENR 27,478 28,092
30,473 37,585

(@)  Atthe end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade @@ HIREHR BHEEAHYENEZRE

payables, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows: EH Z BREE DATIO T
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 60 days 60 HIA 2,250 7,707
61 to 90 days 61290H 33 7
91 to 180 days 91 & 180H 157 15
181-365 days 1812365 H 35 90
Over 365 days 365 BEA L 520 1,674
2,995 9,493

(b)  The average credit period on purchase of goods is ranged b) HEBEERZFHEEHNFI0E20H(Z
from 30 to 90 days (2011: 30 to 90 days). The Group has T——F:30F90R) - XEEDHIEE
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all AZHBRRERRE  MEBFAEERN
payables are settled within the credit time frame. RNIEEERBIERNGEE -

() Included in accrued expenses and other payables are ) EIAEAREMEMNZRBERRSEHR
amounts in total of approximately HK$1,172,000 (2011: ERARFIESEZEAESHRETLD
HK$1,103,000) representing accrued directors’ fees payable 1,172,000 0 (ZZF——% : 1,103,000 /5
to the Company’s directors at the end of the reporting period. JT) °©

(d)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other ) AEBZEZLREMEMNREEZIREE

payables are denominated in the following currencies

AT B EHETIE -

2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

RMB AR 20,748 18,033
HK$ BT 6,662 15,388
Others Eith 3,063 4,164
30,473 37,585




94 C Y Foundation Group Limited Annual Report 2011/12

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—Z——F=A=+—HILFE

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

26. RITRHEMEE

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Secured borrowings: BHRMZEE
Bank loans RITEE 5,305 6,180
Other loan HEmEE 10,000 -
15,305 6,180
Analysis of carrying amounts shown FARBNBEZREEDT -
under current liabilities:
— Portion due for repayment R—FRNEEINBHHD
within one year 10,899 875
— Portion due for repayment after R—FREERPFEREXK
one year which contain BE B2 B AE 5
a repayment on demand clause 4,406 5,305
15,305 6,180
Carrying amounts repayable (note): FERSRITIEE (MEE) -
— On demand or within one year BERKS R —FA 10,899 875
— More than one year but not BR—FETHEBRE
exceeding two years 922 899
— More than two years but not BBMEBTNBARF
more than five years 2,969 2,840
— More than five years HBAF 515 1,566
15,305 6,180
Note: the amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in MisT : FENREIENEESEYBZIBEREERLA
the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand IR BSREIER 2 L -
clause.
(@) At the end of the reporting period, bank and other loans @ RIEHR - RITREMERT D IR HR

carried interest at floating rates of exchange ranging from the
Hong Kong best lending rate less 2.1% to the best lending
rate less 2.9% per annum and 5% per annum respectively.

HHEESREEETANXREF21%E
SEEERNERF2.9% 7 i F BN R 2K
FHEEY o
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26. RITREMEE (HE)

(Continued)

(o) Atthe end of the reporting period, the bank loans are secured (o) RIEHR  RITEFUREBZEEL
by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings of approximately R AEF 4913,142,000 8 TTAEE (=2
HK$13,142,000 (2011: leasehold land and buildings of ——F : fAE i & F13,528,000/8
approximately HK$13,528,000, held-to-maturity investment JC - FAZREHH R E 2,000,000% 7T &
of approximately HK$2,000,000 and pledged bank deposits IRIRTTE 12,428,000/ 7T) - HMWEE
of approximately HK$2,428,000). The other loan was IARR—HZEWB AT RFEEITR
secured by a share charge over the entire issued capital of a K27 BRAD FRECVEH IR o

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(c)  Atthe end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the € MRIEHR AEBZFTEEZEREEE
Group’s borrowings are denominated in HK$. LA TTIE -
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. BEEFIEEE
Change in
fair value
of investment
properties Revaluation
RENEZ of properties Tax losses Total
ALEEE MEBMR BEBE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BT BT
At 1 April 2010 R-E—FFMA—A 4,895 007 (1,319) 3,809
Exchange realignment i 5 5% 216 47 (59) 204
Charged to consolidated REFREREA
profit or loss Mk 8,703 - 1,372 10,075
Charged to other comprehensive REMZERAR
income ks - 841 - 84
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=A=+—-H 13,814 1,115 - 14,929
Exchange realignment B % A% 510 106 - 616
Charged to consolidated RraEEN
profit or loss kg 5,907 - - 5,907
Charged to other comprehensive REMZHEBAR
income ez - 6,489 - 6,489

At 31 March 2012 W-B——#=fA=1—H 20,231 7,710 - 27,94
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, subject to agreement by tax
authorities, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$12,216,000 (2011: HK$79,192,000). No deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of the tax losses of approximately
HK$12,216,000 (2011: HK$79,192,000) due to the unpredictability
of future income stream. At 31 March 2012, approximately
HK$3,694,000 (2011: HK$36,320,000) included in the above
unused tax losses that will expire within five years from the year of
assessment they relate to. The remaining balances may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries from 1 April 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”).
Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to the
Post-2008 Earmnings as no Post-2008 Earnings was noted for the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

EEH AR E(R)

REEHR - RERSIEB RS - AEE 2K
PR IB 1B 49 /412,216,0008 T( —E——4F :
79,192,000/ 7T ) AR FEFTAR R AR -
BRI ERIAEIEL 12,216,000 (=T ——
F 179,192,000 70) 2 EEFRIE F AR - B
—E——F=ZA=+—H " %3,694,000/8 (=
Z——14F : 36,320,000/ 70 ) 5T A _ Ll R BY R
HEE - WEAEETE TSR AFTFAERZ
B8 - BRRE ] R AL -

27.

REBTEMEMEREL  B-_FF\FOA—H
RERTENEQRRIEN( —ZENFRE
MDMEIRZE - BRMBEHR - BREE—
T FR T -—F=RA=1T—HILFEIE
—ETN\FREN  ARAEEYREEGS Y
BREL T N\FRENEIE 2 BRZRATR
BEIEFLIR ©

28. A

Number of shares

BRAEE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each ’000 HK$’000
EREE0.001 B Tz L@k FH& FET
Authorised: SRR
At 31 March 2012 and 2011 R FR T ——%F

=BA=+—H 300,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
At 31 March 2012 and 2011 RZZE——FR_FT——F

=A=+—H 6,968,711 6,969




29. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 30 August 2002 (“Share Option Scheme”), the
Directors may for a consideration of HK$1 offer to selected eligible
persons to subscribe for shares in the Company as incentive or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

At the end of the reporting period, the number of issuable share
options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company was
438,633,830 (2011: 438,633,830), representing approximately 6%
(2011: 6%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The subscription price will be determined by the Directors at its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the
higher of the nominal value for the time being of each share in the
Company, the average closing price of the shares in the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date
on which the relevant option is granted and the closing price of the
shares in the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date on which the relevant option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on 26 September 2002.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no (2011: no) share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants of the Company.

hEEEEEMERAT "B —F-—FEEHS

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #&=—Z——F=A=1+—HILFE

20 REFEZRODEBGENRS

BEARNRBERA_TE_FNA=THRMNZ
RENR AT 8 ([FEARERTE D) - EFELIIEB T
REmEHKE 2 EEBATRLRERRTR/RNG
ZEL - fERBEFEHAERIEL R 2 ZE)s D
i o RBEEAREA S RAQ ST i ET BT
ZHERE &RRHEE - REHTER - 715
FRBANA BT 2 BETTARA Z 30% ©

RBEBHR RAREREAEHETE
438,633,830 15 ( =& ——4F : 438,633,830 13 ) A]
BT B - (hE BARRBBITRG Z6%
(ZE——F :6%) °

ABECHESBURNBETE  EEEABR
T RBETFKERARFAEREREMNZH
B - ARBIRMNEEZE HBRER L A HanE
BIEXS A EHIMERRER AR T
BT E R AR BB B BRSO L B B
BRAERRER LAARZWTEARSER
%) o

BREAZH DR _ZEZE_F LA -+ B4t
o BWERBETF -

WBE-Z-——F=A=+—-RHIFE  REE
PHERTE) - 8B (ZF——F  RB)BRERT
KRBz ABRSHE -
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29. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 20 BB EvROEBRLENARS

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 10 December 2008, options were granted to subscribe for an
aggregate of 9,000,000 shares of the Company, with an exercise
price calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme at HK$0.10 per share. The closing price of the
Company on the day immediately preceding the offer of grant was
HK$0.10 per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in multiple periods starting from 10 December
2009 to 9 December 2018 as follows:

From 10 December 2009 - approximately 3,000,000 shares
to 9 December 2018

From 10 December 2010 - approximately 3,000,000 shares
to 9 December 2018

From 10 December 2011 — approximately 3,000,000 shares

to 9 December 2018

On 30 April 2009, options were granted to subscribe for an
aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of the Company, with an exercise
price calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme at HK$0.52 per share. The closing price of the
Company on the day immediately preceding the offer of grant was
HK$0.079 per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in multiple periods starting from 28 February
2010 to 28 February 2012 as follows:

From 28 February 2010 — 500,000 shares
to 28 February 2012

From 28 August 2010 — 500,000 shares
to 28 February 2012

From 28 February 2011 — 500,000 shares
to 28 February 2012

From 28 August 2011 — 500,000 shares

to 28 February 2012

(%)

RZZZNF+-_A+8  BEEEZERETR
BARQEA ££9,000,000 D - HATFEEER
01078 ST IR IR BB AR ST 8 2 6T E ° ANA T
iR EEEHBLR 2 BHKTEASR0.10
VETL o ERBREZ ALK T ST hEF
+—A+tBERE_FE—N\F+-ANBLHHS
BATE RS 2 -

—ETAF+-A+HBHZE — 43,000,0000% %15
—E-)\F+=ZANAB

—E—ZTF+ZA+HZE — 43,000,0008%% 5
—FE-\Ft=-ANA
—ZT——F+=HF+HZE — #3,000,0008 81D
—E-\FtZANA

RZFEENFOA=+H BREZERE
REEANTEA £2,000,000 /%17 - EITFEES
B%0.52 8 L TR IR B AR A AT 8 2 ST E - K
RNAROREERLZENR 2 ANKTEAER
0.079787T - ERBREZ AT AR T ZZE—
TFE-_A -+ N\HEE-_Z——F-A_-+/\H
IFHARI A REI TR R S5 2 R

—ZHF-A-+/)/\BHZE — 500,000 f%f1n
—#ZA=+N\H
—E—TFENA=-F+NBE — 500,000 %%
——fFZA=+)/\H
—E——FZA=Z+NAHZE — 500,000 &%
——fF-—A=+)N\H
—ZT—F\A=+/\HZ — 500,000 &HHnD
——FZA=+N\H
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29. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 20 REFEZROVERGARS
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#8)
Movements of the Company’s share options during the year are set RAEHBRIERNFEAZ EBENIT ©
out below.

Number of outstanding share options

ATEZBREHE
Exercise price
At Lapsed At Lapsed At per share
1 April 2010 during 31 March 2011 during 31 March 2012 in HK$
Participants Date of grant R-ZE-ZF theyear R-ZE——F theyear R-E-—F  SRITHEE
28 it A mA-B  RFRXY ZA=+-B  RERXR ZA=t-H BT
Employees 10 December 2008
ES “EE\F+=-A+H 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - - - 0.10
30 April 2009
“ZTNFMNA=TA 1,905,000 (1,630,000) 275,000 (275,000) - 0.52
7,905,000 (7,630,000 275,000 (275,000) -
Exercisable at the end
of the reporting period
RRE BRI 476,250 206,250 -
Weighted average
exercise price (HKS$)
IEEATEECET) 0.52 0.19 0.52 0.52 -
During the year, no (2011: HK$134,000) share-based payment FR - IBIERNEFELEENETR > WEERAANFT
in relation to the fair value of the share options granted by the Fri% LB i 2 A FEMEATREBRD AR

Company has been charged against the Group’s resullts. 2 (ZF——%F : 134,000/87T) °
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. HEMBATE]
On 31 March 2012, the Group disposed of its entire interest in RZE——F=ZA=+—H AEEHEER
Corporate Smart Group to New Super International Limited, an Corporate Smart &£ [E 2 2 2R —FH T £ =
independent third party, at a cash consideration of US$1. The net 7+ New Super International Limited = £ {& /& 1
liabilities of Corporate Smart Group at the date of disposal were as % T ° Corporate Smart E BRI E Rz & &
follows:— JRERGAT
HK$'000
BT T
Net liabilities disposed of: g2 FaE -
Other receivables H A FEMGK 11
Bank and cash balances RIT RN R 26
Other payables EAER R (426)
(389)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERMB AW 389
Total consideration BARIE -
Net cash outflow arising on HEME AR MEL 2 IRE L F5E
disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration received B 2R RE -
Bank and cash balances disposed of BEHEZRIT RN EH (26)
(26)
The subsidiaries disposed during the year had no significant impact RAFERHEZHBARTEUAERHE-—F
on the turnover and results of the Group for the year ended 31 —CERCE——E=A=t+—HILEE TR

March 2012 and 2011. FEREEBRERTE -



31. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

(@) Commitments under operating leases
As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to six years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

hEEEEEARAT —T-—F-—EEEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #&Z=—Z——F=A=1+—HILFE

31. &I

RIS B - A EENT

(a)

A ERE
AEBER LA

AEERBLELZHELZFHEEREY
% HEBEMAEF—FE2AF - HE—K
THREMRP XN ERRE MRERITHR
HHDETEHRE -

RB|ER - REBRBTIARUEZEE
THAYEIAE 2 5T 2 DA B AR SR AR M 49K
IHAEEE

2RUVE

2012 2011

—E-C—fF —E—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Within one year —FR 9,945 5,759
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2 —ZEFAFN(BIEEEMEF) 3,952 4,138

13,897 9,897
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31. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

FZA=Z+—HLFE

commitments:

(@) Commitments under operating leases (a)
(Continued)
AS lessee

(b)

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases are
negotiated for a term ranging from one to six years (2011:
one to seven years). The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the leased period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

31. A& (E)

RIS B - A EENT

A ERE ()

A EBERATNA

REERBECEROTHBEEETHAE
MEREIRNE © Wi 2 BOFBMNTF—
:I:/\EE( T——F: —E2LF) KAEE
WENHHE RSB EMEE 2 EEY
BIERE

RER - NEE A K LD

commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- i 7a ¥K ERRFIEBONZ Bt
cancellable operating leases which are payable as follows: N
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Within one year —FN 3,981 10,477
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EE-ZEFERFERN(BIEBEME) 17,877 24,500
Over five years AF L 609 1,131
22,467 36,108
Capital commitments (b) BEREE
2012 2011
—E-CfF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETFT
Capital expenditure contracted for B 5] #BWE R LR A BIISTHRE
but not provided in the NELBEZEXRHAS ¢
consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
— Acquisition of property, plant IR EE - MR RS
and equipment 564 -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEALERS
(@)  The Group entered into the following significant transactions @ AKRER-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HILFE
with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2011: BREATHETZERRSAT ¢
Notes HK$'000
BiaE BT T
Rental income received in respect 2 U B Horizon Structured
of renting properties to Horizon Structured Solutions Limited ([ Horizon |)
Solutions Limited (“Horizon”) as office HEWMEIEAMAEZHSIA @), (v) 60
Consultancy fee paid to Bersett International B2 15 Bersett International (HK) Limited
(HK) Limited (“Bersett”) ([Bersett]) BB & F (ii), (v) 500
Purchase of watches from Shanghai Heng M EBEREZRERAE
Po Watch Company Limited* ([ EBERDREFF
(“Shanghai Heng Po”)
PEEREZRERANF (i), (vi) 8,955
* The English name is for identification only * B EEEHE2E
0] Rental fee received from the related party was made on terms 0] RBEATWERAS - REE R R
mutually agreed between both parties. TE 2 GRETT -
(i) Consultancy fee paid to the related party was made on terms (i) MEEATZNERBR 2 EIRES R E
mutually agreed between the involved parties. 77 R E 2 IGRRHETT ©
(i) The prices of purchasing watches from Shanghai Heng Po was (i) B bEERREGEER 2 ERHREL2HEES
made on terms mutually agreed between the involved parties. HERE 2 BRETE ©
(v)  Mr. Wu and Mr. Cheng were the key management personnel and (iv) REERKEELCREEZERAS H HERX
had significant influences over the Company and Horizon. A7 & Horizon MENIE A2 -
) Mr. Wu was the key management personnel and had significant v) REEGRETEEEAE  HHARAR
influence over the Company and Bersett. Bersett fEMNEAFE -
(vi) Ms. Yung was the key management personnel and had significant (vi) RUTBATEERAL  BHARRARE
influence over the Company and Shanghai Heng Po. BERENEATE -
()  Key management compensation (o) FEEIREEN
The key management personnel of the Group comprise all AEETEEEENEREARRZEE
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals. Details ERhEEEFMAL EERAEES
of the compensation to Directors and the five highest paid FHA L2 G FIBEN G A ISR EM
individuals are included in note 13 to the consolidated F13 0

financial statements.
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33. LITIGATIONS

(a)

The Company against Mr. Cheng, Ms. Leonora
Yung (“Ms. Yung”) and others

In connection with the payment in the sum of HK$9,306,500
(the “Payment”) made to Ms. Yung, the wife of Mr. Cheng
and a former employee of the Company, purportedly for
legal fees and expenses incurred by Mr. Cheng and Ms.
Yung in relation to (i) the investigation conducted by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, details of
which were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 13 September 2010, 7 October 2010, 7 March 2011
and 6 October 2011; and (i) petition under section 168A of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“S168A Petition”),
details of which were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 21 April 2010, 24 January 2011, 27 January
2011, 27 April 2012 and 11 May 2012. In relation to the
Payment, on 14 April 2011, the Company, as plaintiff, has
issued an originating summons in the Court of First Instance
at the High Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) against
Mr. Cheng, Ms. Yung, Mr. Ng Pui Lung (“Mr. Ng”, a former
Director), Mr. Wang Shanchuan (a former Director) and Mr.
Ho Chi Chung Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Ho”, a former Director
and the former acting chief executive officer of the Group).
Details of this litigation were disclosed in 2011 Annual Report
and 2011/12 Interim Report of the Company.

Pursuant to a court order granted on 18 November 2011, a
further hearing will be held on a day to be fixed by the court
not earlier than 2 weeks after delivery of verdict in the criminal
proceedings.
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33. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

The Company and Highsharp Investments
Limited (“Highsharp”), as plaintiffs

On 5 May 2011, the Company and Highsharp, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as plaintiffs, issued a writ
of summons in the High Court against, among others, Mr.
Cheng, Ms. Yung, the personal representatives of Mr. Kok
Teng Nam (also known as Kenny Nam), deceased, Mr. Philip
Yu and Agustus Investments Limited (“Agustus”). Details
of this litigation were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 9 October 2007, 11 May 2011, 2011
Annual Report and 2011/12 Interim Report of the Company,
respectively.

On 15 September 2011, upon the joint application of the
Company, Highsharp, Mr. Cheng, Ms. Yung and Mr. Philip
Yu by way of Consent Summons, the proceeding be stayed
pending the conclusion of the criminal proceedings in District
Court No. 476 of 2011. A directions hearing be fixed within
14 days after delivery of the verdict in the said criminal
proceedings. Agustus has failed to file any Acknowledgement
of Service by 27 October 2011.

The Company and Ace Precise International
Limited (“Ace Precise”), as plaintiffs

On 6 May 2011, the Company and Ace Precise, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as plaintiffs, issued a writ
of summons in the High Court against Best Max Holdings
Limited (“Best Max”), Mr. Lo Chun Cheong (also known
as Ronald Lo) (sole director and registered shareholder of
Best Max) (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Cheng, Mr. Joseph Ho and Mr.
Yeung Tak Hung Arthur (“Mr. Arthur Yeung”, the former chief
operating officer of the Group). Details of this litigation were
disclosed in 2011 Annual Report and 2011/12 Interim Report
of the Company.

By the court order granted on 23 November 2011, the time
for Mr. Lo to comply with Unless Order dated 28 October
2011 for filing and service of Defence be extended until 2
weeks after disposal of Mr. Lo’s summons for striking out.
The hearing of Mr. Lo’s striking out summons was heard on
7 February 2012 and the Company is now awaiting court
judgment.
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33. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries of the Company against Mr. Cheng

On 11 June 2011, the Company, together with certain of
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely CYC Investments
Limited, Sincere Land Holdings Limited, Hainan Treasure
Way Enterprises Limited (“Treasure Way”), Hainan Jiaying
Internet Technology Company Limited (“Jiaying”), Suzhou C
Y Foundation Entertainment and Investment Management
Limited (“Suzhou C Y Foundation”), CYC Investment
Consultancy (Wuxi) Limited (“CYC Wuxi”), and Longpin
Investment Consultancy (Shanghai) Company Limited
(“Longpin”), as plaintiffs, issued an originating summons in
the High Court to claim against Mr. Cheng. Details of this
litigation were disclosed in 2011 Annual Report and 2011/12
Interim Report of the Company.

The hearing of Mr. Cheng’s summons dated 19 December
2011 for striking out was heard on 15 May 2012 and the
Company is now awaiting court judgment.

The Company against former management and
employees

On 3 June 2011, the Company, as plaintiff, issued a writ
of summons in the High Court against, among others, Mr.
Cheng, Ms. Yung, Mr. Joseph Ho, Mr. Arthur Yeung, Ms.
Kwok Pui Hung (“Ms. Stella Kwok”, a former director of
human resources of the Group), Mr. Tsang Heung Yip (“Mr.
Wallace Tsang”, a former financial controller of the Group)
and other 6 former employees (collectively referred to as the
“Defendants”). Details of this litigation were disclosed in 2011
Annual Report and 2011/12 Interim Report of the Company.

A mediation notice was filed by the Company on 12 January
2012 to attempt mediation to resolve all of its disputes
with the Defendants. Mediation responses were filed by
the Defendants on 20 January 2012 and 26 January 2012
respectively, all of the Defendants agree with the mediation
which is expected to commence in July 2012.
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33. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

()

(9)

A subsidiary of the Company against Ms. Yung

Ms. Yung and Kingbox (Asia) Limited (“Kingbox”) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into supplemental agreement dated 4 January 2010 (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) which provides that Kingbox
would pay to Ms. Yung upon her termination of employment
a remunerative payment which equaled her annual salary
income multiplied by two years (the total amount should not
exceed 28 months’ salary). On 17 August 2011, Kingbox,
as plaintiff, commenced a legal proceeding in the High
Court against Ms. Yung, as defendant, in respect of the
Supplemental Agreement. Details of this litigation were
disclosed in 2011 Annual Report and 2011/12 Interim Report
of the Company.

Kingbox filed a mediation notice on 16 February 2012 to
attempt mediation to resolve all of its disputes with Ms.
Yung. Ms. Yung filed a mediation response on 1 March 2012
in agreement with the mediation. The first joint mediation
session was held on 30 April 2012 but ended on 7 May
2012, as Kingbox and Ms, Yung were not able to reach an
agreement to settle the dispute.

Section 168A Petition (Luck Continent against Mr.
Cheng and the Company)

On 14 April 2010, the Company was served, among other
respondents, with a petition issued pursuant to S168A
Petition by Luck Continent, a substantial shareholder of the
Company (the“Petitioner”). Under the S168A Petition, the
Petitioner is seeking from the court, among other things, (i)
an order against the Company requiring it to amend its Bye-
law 86(4) such that the Company may by ordinary resolution
remove a director at any time before the expiration of his
period of office provided that a statement of the intention to
remove a director be served on such director 14 days before
the meeting; (i) an order against the Company requiring it to
amend its Bye-law 86(1) such that the members in general
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33. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(9)

Section 168A Petition (Luck Continent against Mr.
Cheng and the Company) (Continued)

meeting may themselves fill or, authorize the board to fill any
vacancy in their number left unfilled at any general meeting;
(iii) injunction restraining the respondents from voting
against the resolution to amend Bye-law 86(4) at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 30 April 2010 or
any adjournment thereof; (iv) an order that the Company
do cause Suzhou C Y Foundation not to proceed with the
Suzhou Caidebao Transaction and to demand the repayment
of the earnest money; (v) a declaration that the purported
appointment of Messrs. Joseph Ho, Yu Ping, Zhang Yiwei
and Tang Ming as executive directors with effect from 16
November 2009 was invalid and of no effect; and (vi) an order
for the appointment of a receiver and/or manager for the
purposes of conducting an independent investigation and/
or audit of the matters complained of in the S168A Petition.
Details of this litigation were disclosed in 2011/12 Interim
Report of the Company.

The judgment (the “Judgment”) for the S168A Petition
hearing was handed down on 25 April 2012. It was
mentioned in the Judgment that: (i) the consequence of
the various respondents (other than the Company) voting
against the resolution for the Bye-law Amendment at the
general meetings held by the Company in the past was that
the Company thereby failed to amend its bye-laws so as to
bring them into line with the requirements of paragraph 4(3) of
Appendix 3 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and (i) the failure
of the Company to amend its bye-law to allow for removal of
director by ordinary resolution was a matter which was unfair
and prejudicial in the sense required by section 168A of the
Companies Ordinance. Accordingly, an order was handed
down that the bye-laws of the Company be amended so as
to enable a director to be removed by an ordinary resolution.
Details of the Judgment were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 27 April 2012 and 11 May 2012. The
respondents (other than the Company) intend to appeal the
Judgment.
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. TEMBEATA
The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the TRINLEER B ERNEEAFE EE AL
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or BRSO EEFEZARREEWEAR] - ESE
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BEHNEMHB AR SERIRBRTILE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 and 31 RZE——F=ZA=+—HBNK_ZE——F=A
March 2011 are as follows: =t+—HZEEWMBREFBEOT ¢
Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued equity interest
registration/ ordinary shares/ attributable to
operations registered capital the Company
Name of subsidiary MRS ERTEBERRA AAFEL Principal activity
WEAREH e g |/ EEx RERAL TEEH
Directly held:
BEERR:
Expert Global Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Corporate Service
ERERREBRAT BE 18T AR
Indirectly held:
MRS
Kingbox (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% Manufacture and sale of
22T ERAR BE 5,000,000/ 7T packaging products
HERHEERRER
Beiling Horizon Trading Company Limited The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% Online game tournament services
IREARBESERAT i AR 1,000,000 7T BLEEZRER
T-Matrix Culture Company Limited The PRC RMB97,000,000 100% Online game tournament services
TEREERAR e AR#97,000,0007 BBRRRER
Shanghai Jifeng Investment Management The PRC RMB171,206,300 100% Investment holding
Co., Limited* HE ARE171,206,300 7 REER

LBELRAREARAR

* The English names are for identification only

. R ERD2E
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35.

36.

37.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 6 April 2012,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party
in relation to the disposal of a leasehold land and building at a
consideration of approximately HK$6,980,000. This transaction
contributed to the Group a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$2,113,000.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 1 June 2012.

35.

36.

37.
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A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ANEEBEETAMBEE 7 £EREAERBEBRE
five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial 8% 8 0 TR S EZMBHRERIL ES] S0 HE(wniE
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. g WEHT -

RESULTS

ES

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLEFE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-"f —T-—F% ZT-TF ZTTNF —TT/\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT E%Tr A%t AT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
Turnover EE 148,361 145,075 117,149 57,046 664
Loss before tax BrEiRIEE (68,161)  (293,811) (80,117)  (195,630) (28,542)
Income tax FiE®i (6,625) (10,549) (3,429) (358) (608)
Loss for the year from REEFELE
continuing operations Byl i (74,786)  (304,360) (83,546)  (195,988) (29,150)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIEREEK
Loss for the year from a REZHKR LS
discontinued operation ¥ 7ER - - - (2,695) (11,733)
Loss for the year AEEER (74,786)  (304,360)  (83,546)  (198,683)  (40,883)
Attributable to: 1
Owners of the Company ARAREAA (73,521)  (302,972) (78,594)  (195,662) (41,363)
Non-controlling interests EElii (1,265) (1,388) (4,952) (3,021) 480
(74,786)  (304,360) (83,546)  (198,683) (40,883)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—-8
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—2-"f —T——% _T-FTF _TTNF _TT/\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT A%t A%t AT
Total assets BEE 271,465 315929 627,086 712,510 873,288
Total liabilities Bam (74,114) (58,740) (77,868)  (107,577)  (108,542)
Net assets FEE 197,351 257,189 549,168 604,933 764,746
Attributable to: 1 -
Owners of the Company /NI ESUN 196,245 254,800 547,904 600,978 758,745
Non-controlling interests IR R 1,106 2,299 1,264 3,955 6,001

197,351 257,189 549,168 604,933

764,746
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Particulars of property interests held by the Group as at 31 March 2012 A&EER _—_E——F=A=+—BHBE2MEER
are as follows: BT

Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group

it B R FH FEEELES

Investment properties

REME

Units 1601-3, 1605-12, 1615-23 and 1625-6, Office Medium 100%
No.7 Jiaguo Mennei Dajie, PWAE H HA

Dongcheng District, Beijing City, the PRC

R EIAE R R B PTAAHT 7 5%

1601-3= * 1605-12%E - 1615-23 E 2 1625-6 &

Owner-occupied properties

EREEIES

Unit 5D, Dragon Industrial Building Office Medium 100%
93, King Lam Street, Cheung Sha Wan WAE Fh

Kowloon, Hong Kong

EENBERDEEMET 935

BEATEAESDE

Flat H, 32/F., Block 5, Staff quarter Medium 100%
Manhattan Hill, Mei Foo, BIRE® A

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BBNEEFEREL

FREREHE
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